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TRC Consruction Public Company Limited

For TRC Construction Public Company Limited, a
number of major developments were taken place in
2005 such as the conversion into a public company
and the listing of our shares on the MAI market of
which it gave the Company the privilege in a tax
reduction from 30% to 20% for a 5-year period from
2006-2010. Also, the Company had signed contracts
for three large construction projects including:

. WS Recovery Boiler Project, worth Baht 515
million, which is a project to build a factory and
install the boiler for alkaline solution substance
from Cyclo-hexanone in order to generate
steam. This is the first project for engineering
system installation and factory construction in

petrochemical industry business.

. Natural Gas Pipeline Project : Knock - out
Drum Phase Il from PTT Plc., worth Baht
126.5 million.

. Natural Gas Pipeline Project : Wangnoi-

Kaengkhoi from PTT Plc., worth Baht 2,100
million, which is operated by CPP-TRC
Joint Venture, the cooperation between
the Company and China Petroleum Pipeline
Bureau (CPP). The Joint Venture was formed
in a proportion of 10:90. However, the
Company did not invest nor provide any
financial supports in forms of equity or loans
to this Joint Venture. Therefore, the Company
is not eligible to realize any gain or loss from
this Joint Venture. CPP is a subsidiary of
China National Petroleum Corporation (CNPC)
which is the largest company in the Chinese

energy sector.

Apart from pipeline system construction unit
and engineering system installation and factory
construction in petrochemical Industry business
unit, the Company also set up the engineering
system installation and factory construction in

biotechnology unit in 2005 as the Company had

seen some opportunities of growth in this industry
from the government’s supporting policy as well as
the fact that Rotary Engineering Pte, who holds 100%
of major shareholder, Rotary Trel Pte Ltd., is a listed
Singaporean firm that has an extensive experience

in biotechnology.

The Company experienced a significant growth
in 2005 compared to the previous year where
service and management service income stood at
Baht 503.8 million with a net profit of Baht 30.7
million or equivalent to the increases of 305.86%
and 270.62%, respectively. As of December 31, 2005,
the Company had six projects on hand total work
value of Baht 898.0 million of which Baht 487.8
million would be recognized in 2006.

The natural gas pipeline construction and the
petrochemical engineering system installation
and factory construction are expected to grow
further as a result of the fact that the petrochemical
industry is currently on an upward cycle plus the
government’s policy to promote the uses of
alternative resources with a purpose to ease the
high gasoline price situation. Natural gas which
is one of the alternative resources had faced an
increasing demand from both industrial sector and

gas separation plants.

On behalf of the Company’s Board of Directors,
| would like to thank all the customers, shareholders,
financial institutions, business alliances as well as
others for your kind supports during the past year.
Also, | would like to assure you that the Company
would be operated with transparency under the
good corporate governance in order to achieve the
sustainable growth for the most satisfaction of all

parties by providing high quality standards and safety

W g

(Mrs. Paichit Rattananon)

works.

Chairman of the Board
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TRC Consruction Public Company Limited

The Audit Committee of TRC Construction Public
Company Limited consists of three independent
directors which were appointed by the Extraordinary
Shareholder’'s Meeting No. 2/2005 dated March 3,
2005. The Audit Committee has a two years term
and the duties and responsibilities to ensure the
accuracy and adequacy of the Company’s financial
reports, to ensure that the Company has suitable
and efficient internal control system, to ensure
the Company’s compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations, to consider, select, nominate, and
recommend remuneration of the Company’s auditor
as well as to ensure the accuracy and completeness
of the disclosure of information of the Company
in case that there is a connected transaction or
transaction that may lead to conflict of interest. The
manager of internal audit department shall act
as the Audit Committee’s secretary. In 2005, the
Audit Committee held four meetings every quarter
and the Audit Committee Meeting No. 1/2006 dated
February 23, 2006 had been held to evaluate the
sufficiency of internal control system for the year 2005

as can be summarized as follows:

Financial Statement Reports: The Audit Committee
considered and reviewed Q1, Q2, Q3 and yearly
financial statements of 2005 together with the
management and the independent auditor to ensure
that those reports were appropriate and complied
with the general accepted accounting principles. The
transactions with related parties were disclosed
properly in the notes of the financial statement. Also,
the Audit Committee considered the comments of
independent auditor regarding the internal control
system of which the auditor had stated in the
Management Letter of 2005 and provided some

recommendations to the Company.

The Connected transactions: The Audit Committee
considered, reviewed and provided opinions on the
necessity and the reasonableness of the connected
transactions between the Company and the related
firms which could lead to some conflicts of interest
in accordance with the Company’s connected
transaction policy as well as the code of conduct for

the good corporate governance.

The Internal Control System: The Audit Committee
considered the internal audit plan for 2005 and
provided some recommendations to the internal
control department in order to achieve effective and
efficient outcomes that can be evaluated according
to the plan for each and every departments of
the Company. In addition, the Audit Committee
evaluated the sufficiency of the internal control
system and deemed that the current internal control
system of the Company is sufficient and is able to

protect the Company from management’s fraud.

The Audit Committee agreed with the independent
auditor that, for the financial statement of 2005
ended on December 31, 2005, there was neither
troubled incidences nor transactions that had
significant effects on the Company’s financial status.
The financial statements were provided appropriately
and complied with the general accepted accounting
principles with the sufficient information disclosure.
In addition, the Company had a good and proper

internal control system.

o e

(Assoc. Prof. Kamjorn Tatiyakavee, MD.)
The Chairman of Audit Committee

February 23, 2006

Annual Report 2005
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TRC Consruction Public Company Limited

. UNlWaas Sauuun
Mrs. Paichit Rattananon

. wsuIuns niwAiiauns
Mr. Narindr Vangsrivadhanagul

U5251UNTINNNG
Chairman

N330N13 USEBUNTINNTUIMT UREINEINS
AT e i Nl

Director, Chairman of the Executive
Committee and Acting Vice President,
Oversea Project Department

3} mﬂ‘lwm”sz‘i Tn "asnded NTINMIHIANTT URZINHNNTHB MBI
Mr. Paitoon Goserakwong MIEULAZUSINTUT
President and Acting Vice President,

Finance and General Administration

Department
4. welavi B9 A N3NNI
Mr. Loh Eng Kee Director
5. U 1M9nNanl AU qas‘sm NIINNT
Ms. Jongkolnee Tansuvan Director
6. UBNU th L“\‘l NIINNT
Mr. Tan Teck Seng Director

7. 5A. UW. N7 ARBNT N3NNI LAZUIEHIUNTINANTATIA DY

Assoc. Prof. Kamjom Tatiyakavee, MD. Director and Chairman of the Audit

Committee

8. 9A. NIAY L AL YT NITINNTT LRSNITINNIIAIIN DU

Assoc. Prof. Pises Sethsathira Director and Audit Committee

9. 3A. A3. WNTY AngneRTIAT NIINNTT LATNITNNNTATID DU
Assoc. Prof. Aekkachai Nittayagasetwat, Director and Audit Committee
PH.D., FRM.
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TRC Construction Public Company Limited

General Information

Name

Nature of Business

TRC Construction Public Company Limited (“Company”)
Engages in (i) pipeline system construction, (ii) engineering system installation
and factory construction in petrochemical business and (iii) engineering system

installation and factory construction in biotechnology business

Head Office

Registration Number
Home Page
Telephone

Facsimile
Registered Capital
Paid-up Capital
Number of issued

Ordinary Shares

1 TP&T Building, 14" Floor, Soi Vibhavadi Rangsit 19, Chatuchak,
Bangkok 10900

0107548000293
http://www.trc-con.com
0 - 2936 -1660

0 - 2936 -1670 -1

Baht 154,500,000
Baht 150,000,000

150,000,000 shares

Par Value Baht 1

References

Registrar Thailand Securities Depository Company Limited

Address The Stock Exchange of Thailand Building, 62 Ratchadaphisek Road,
Klongtoey, Bangkok 10110

Telephone 0 - 2229 - 2800

Facsimile 0 - 2359 - 1259

Auditor Ernst & Young Office Limited

Address 193/136-137 Lake Ratchda Complex, 33" Floor, Ratchadaphisek Road,
Bangkok 10110

Telephone 0 - 2264 - 0777, 0 - 2661 - 9190

Facsimile 0 - 2264 - 0789 - 90, 0 - 2661 - 9192
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TRC Consruction Public Company Limited

Financial Summary

(in Million Baht)

2005 2004 2003
Total Assets 446.97 72.09 76.41
Total Liabilities 235.82 23.80 38.40
Shareholders’ Equity 211.15 48.30 38.01
Service Income 503.84 120.34 124.86
Management Service Income 0.00 3.80 0.00
Total Revenue 509.34 127.95 126.04
Gross Profit 79.62 27.58 21.96
Earning before Interest and Tax 44.28 12.69 10.15
Interest and Tax 13.58 4.41 3.47
Net Profit 30.70 8.28 6.68

Financial Ratio

2005 2004 2003
Gross Profit Margin 15.80% 22.22% 17.59%
Not Profit Margin 5.30% 6.47% 6.30%
Return on Equity 23.67% 19.20% 19.28%
Return on Total Assets 11.83% 11.16% 11.92%
Debt to Equity Ratio 112 0.49 1.01
Dividend Payout Ratio 48.85% 217.28% 0.00%
Earning per Share'” (Baht) 0.22 0.33 0.33
Book Value per Share'” (Baht) 1.41 1.21 1.90

(1) A par value of Baht 1 per share was used for the period of 2003-2004 for comparison purpose.

Revenue & Net profit

Revenue (MB)

i IIII
0

2002 2003 2004

[ " Revenue —— Net profit |

2005

Net profit (MB)

Times

Debt to Equity Ratio

1.0

2002 2003 2004 2005

Profitability Ratio

25
20 4
154
104  IZ===a

2002 2003 2004

Operating Profit Margin (%)
ROE (%)

Net Profit Margin (%)
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TRC Consruction Public Company Limited

Nature of Business

Background and Major Development in 2005

TRC Construction Public Company Limited was
incorporated in 1998 with the registered capital
of Baht one million by group of Mr. Paitoon
Goserakwong, the management who has experience
of more than two decades in the engineering system
installation and construction business for companies
in petrochemical industry. Subsequently, in 1999,
the Company increased its registered capital to Baht
20 million and had the shareholding restructured.
After the restructuring, KPK 1999 Co., Ltd., 99.99%
owned by group of Mr. Paitoon Goserakwong, held
49% of the Company while another 51% of the
Company was held by Thai Rotary Engineering
Limited, a subsidiary of Rotary Engineering Limited,
the leader in construction and engineering business
in Singapore. The presence of such an experienced
company has strengthened the Company’s technical
skills and financial status. Later in 2002, Mrs. Paichit
Rattananon replaced the group of Mr. Paitoon
Goserakwong as a major shareholder in KPK 1999
Co., Lid.

In 2004, the Company increased the registered
capital from Baht 20 million to Baht 100 million to
support the business expansion of which 25% of
the registered capital had been paid up. As a result,
the paid-up capital stood at Baht 40 million. The
Company, again, had the shareholding restructured
where the Company’s shareholding of Rotary
Engineering Limited through Thai Rotary Engineering
Company Limited was replaced by Rotary Trel Pte
Ltd., another 100% owned subsidiary of Rotary

Engineering Limited.
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In January 2005, another 75% of the registered
capital was fully paid. Subsequently, in February 2005
the Company signed the Baht 515 million MOU
contract with Thai Incinerate Service Co., Ltd., for
WS Recovery Boiler Project which was the first
project of the engineering system installation and
factory construction in petrochemical business. The
Company’s General Shareholders’ Meeting of
2005 which was held on March 18, 2005 passed the
resolution to transform the Company into a public
company. Later on April 8, 2005, the Extraordinary
Shareholders’ Meeting No. 3/2005 passed the reso-
lutions to confirm the Company’s public company
conversion, to change the par value of Baht 100 to
Baht 1, to increase the registered capital from Baht
100 million to Baht 120 million by issuing 20 million
new shares to the public and to change the Com-
pany name from “TRC Construction Co., Lid.” to

“TRC Construction Public Company Limited”.

In May 2005, the Baht 515 million contract of WS
Recovery Boiler Project was signed. This 21-month
project is to build a factory and install the boiler
for alkaline solution substance from Cyclo-hexanone
in order to generate steam. The Company has
started working on this project since February 2005.
Subsequently, the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting
No. 1/2005 dated August 10, 2005, passed the
resolutions to decrease the unpaid capital of Baht
20 million and to increase the capital by Baht 54.5
million with the following intentions:

20 million shares to be offered to the existing

shareholders at the price of Baht 1.147 per share.
Annual Report 2005
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TRC Consruction Public Company Limited

30 million shares to be offered to public.
4.5 million shares for the greenshoe option
in compliance with the relevant laws and

regulations.

On August 10, 2005, CPP-TRC Joint Venture signed
the Baht 2,100 million of 16-month natural gas
pipeline project, Wangnoi-Kaengkhoi. The CPP-TRC
Joint Venture is the cooperation between the
Company and China Petroleum Pipeline Bureau
(CPP) - a subsidiary of the biggest energy company
in China, China National Petroleum Corporation
(CNPC) - in a proportion of 10:90. During August
31 - September 6, 2005, the existing shareholders
subscribed the Company’s increased shares of 20
million shares. Consequently, the paid-up capital of

the Company stood at Baht 120 million.

On September 30, 2005, the Company signed the
Baht 220 million sub-contract for Wangnoi-Kaengkhoi

Natural Gas Pipeline Project with CPP-TRC Joint

Venture. Later on November 15, 2005, the Company
and China Petroleum Pipeline Bureau amended
the joint venture contract that the profit sharing
from the joint venture shall be corresponding to the
investment and/or the financial supports and/or the
assistance to find financial resource of each partner.
As of December 31, 2005, the Company neither
made any investment nor provided any financial
supports or assistance to find financial resources
for the project. In addition, the Company does not
have any intention to do so in the future; therefore,
the Company will not receive any sharing from the

profit or loss of this joint venture project.

The Company offered its 30 million shares to public
at the offering price of Baht 1.70 per share during
December 14 -16, 2005. The proceeds of Baht 51
million will be used as working capital. The shares
of the Company have been listed on the MAI on

December 22, 2005.

Nature of Business

TRC Construction Public Company Limited (“the
Company” or “TRC”) is a contractor whose works
engage in pipeline system construction, and engi-
neering system installation and factory construction
in petrochemical industry. The Company also set up
new business unit, engineering system installation
and factory construction in biotechnology industry
in order to bid future projects. TRC may propose
the bid by itself, coordinate with local/international
partners or form a joint venture or consortium to bid

and manage the projects.

The nature of services provided by the Company

can be divided into four main types as follows:

15

Engineering service is the service that the
customers hire the Company to design the
engineering process. This service requires
knowledge in engineering design regarding
construction and installation in order to

provide effective service to customers.

Procurement service is the service that TRC
procures the construction materials as per
the customers’ demands for construction and
installation as planned. TRC usually obtains
this kind of service contract together with the

construction service contract.

Annual Report 2005
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TRC Consruction Public Company Limited

3. Construction service is the construction and
engineering system installation after the

engineering and procurement services are done.

4, Construction management service is the
service to manage the construction projects

according to the construction plans.

The customers may do the contract with the Company
for one or many services. Also, the Company may
subcontract some parts of the services that the
Company successfully obtained the contracts to
sub-contractors who is specialize in such services,
for example, the civil work of a foundation for

machine installation.

Presently, the Company has no subsidiary or affiliate;
however, in 2005, the Company has formed a joint
venture with China Petroleum Pipeline Bureau (CPP)
under the name of CPP-TRC Joint Venture in order
to enter the bid and to perform the works for Wangnoi-
Kaengkhoi Natural Gas Pipeline Project from PTT Plc.
The proportion of the joint venture between CPP and
TRC is 90:10; however, according to the joint venture
agreement the Company has no sharing in profit

and loss of the joint venture’s operating performance.

Currently, the Company has three business units
including (i) the pipeline system construction, (ii)
the engineering system installation and factory
construction for petrochemical business and (iii)
the engineering system installation and factory
construction for biotechnology business. The latter
unit was set up in 2005 with a purpose to enter the
bid for projects in the future.

1. The Pipeline System Construction Unit

The Company’s pipeline system construction

17

unit mainly focuses on natural gas pipeline
system construction for companies in energy
and petrochemical industry owing to the
Company’s specialization in energy and
petrochemical sector. The Company may
engage into a project either through bidding
process or direct hiring. Major customer for
this business unit is PTT Plc. In the past, the
Company mainly constructed the natural gas
distribution pipeline system. The bidding for
the cross-country natural gas pipeline projects
usually needs support(s) from international
partner(s). Wangnoi-Kaengkhoi Natural Gas
Pipeline Project was the first project that the
Company bid for the cross-country natural gas
pipeline project through the CPP-TRC Joint
Venture, the cooperation between China
Petroleum Pipeline Bureau and the Company.
In addition, the Company has entered into the
bids for other pipeline system projects such
as pipeline system project for petrochemical
raw materials, water pipeline project, etc. The
Company has gained a good reputation for
the expertise in natural gas pipeline system
among the leading companies in petrochemical
industry including PTT Plc., PTL Co-Generation
Co., Ltd., Mabtaput Industrial Gas Co., Ltd.,
Amata Corporation Plc., and Thai Gypsum

Products Plc. etc.

The Engineering System Installation and
Factory Construction for Petrochemical
Business Unit

This business unit engages in both engineering
system installation and factory construction
where most of the services are to be provided

for companies in petrochemical industry. At

Annual Report 2005



asad InauSeny anaazyitnisne $19lseen
90 MMNITHNIONAUAANITZULIAINT TN
MSul999I%  SUNUSENYATSURAGIITUL

a

Aeansan wlngazdulsenuge mnsaalu

a

ﬁqiﬂﬂﬂi@lﬂﬂﬁ FIVTHNY mﬂﬁmﬁ'wamu
= a o % dd‘ o =,
WIDWIUSHNNT U ‘téumﬂ‘[uiaﬂ‘ﬂmmu
%IUN1IL wadadndsznaaan bl laglu
o a2 o L X ¥
ffaatiu u3gny Bufinsveaeuly winau
wazdl 2548 l¢Sun1331dslueulasenis WS
Recovery Boiler Project yjafnd1uaasuiEmy

Y3z 515 auun

3. mi'aﬂﬁ;sﬁa%'ummﬁﬂﬁﬁzuﬁmnﬁuuaz
1 v v )
no i"l\‘lIi\‘l\‘l']Hl%Q@l MMnIsnAunalulad
7w (Biotechnology)

Tuil 2548 uSENY ﬁmiﬁ’@ﬁwmﬂﬁqiﬁa%’u
WAHIAAGITZULTAINTINLATNE S19lTeeulu
a0 1ANTINFNAlulag TN laguSeny
< < = a a &1

Wadindelant luniadulavesgsfadiainua
wasnsdulaludumealulagdrniwiialan 919

FIUNITHRN I1UINE AZNITAITZHINU TN

USUN AOSE AoU ASABU $1N0 (UML)

%Qﬁqiﬁaﬁé’aﬂ%mwNﬁmmzm\i (know-how)
ey ﬂ’J’]NL%SJ’J“H’]E]J:LuﬂWiﬁa $uasfngd waz
ffaatuludszinelnadslaifiuisnle Farmd
UTENY La\iﬁazﬁmmL%ﬂwwzyl,l,azt,ﬁslﬁw

qiﬁaﬁwuﬁuwdau

UBNANUTENY  azfinsAnELaziaToNdLAe L
Uszmamenunasiiaiuluauinn USny fefinne
lATNIANNTINT NS EIRaeTefiaz 1Ty Uu
nMedhuanafianzmelunstinduiuns ans

MU TENINTINNIULAZANTIUNNTND F19LATANAS L

'
[% 8

a_ & a o A & aa a ° <, a o
BNy UIWN Ii(ﬂ”li BUALBETI ANA DL UUTEN
I L% v

aansdauludszmevalus wasdludfamudosas 100

9

&

o

a o tdl = 6a aaa A U 1
luv3dn lean3 flendBuen Wid s iledulng
PaUSENY AUTZ UNIIEBNNTELHRA1IAa $19ln
qsﬁaﬁ LAZUNRZ Tl Huu’%ﬂ’m Tunrsidusznaa

A o ao . o Hd
Menlsznnild laauseny a1aqn panadiiu
7INANABIFEAMNTNTYLAWIEFIU  1W1TRAE
l#darmnanauunuind lasfiguddluaaation e ua

a o

daruasgdvle dluauinn

lnsv $1vs1glf

v W
v a

509.34

TwmelaneTu

Tass Seela TIBNG  IDPARZ | WIBNG  I0E8T | WIUNNL  I08AY
(Buun) (1117n) (RuuN)

TeldanFumanna $reszuuve 207.16 40.67  112.91 88.25  124.13 98.48
selFangaiasumsndndeszuy 294.08 57.74 7.43 5.81 073 0.58
Jenyruuazne 39 wsulseanulu

an wnysndlasiad

selFannsiuiesu’” 2.60 0.51 0.00 0.00 0.0 0.00
Tuneldangsfanan 503.84 98.92  120.34 94.05 124.86 99.06
elEgu® 5.50 1.08 7.61 5.95 1.18 0.94

100.00

127.95 100.00 126.04

VIN']EIIM@!:

(@neazdaaldluiade Mamaszniieii)
@

SIEOWUUSDU 2548

< ~

O rgldannissudiedn Idun Teldauwdausuuwes, Wi, Rawanussn le 8 Bu G e

2 Qe g v oA e . X v
Teldau ldun Meldausmdans naldaanids wazsaldug



TRC Consruction Public Company Limited

this stage, the Company may seek for
partner(s) or technology support(s) in order
to enter into any project bids. Presently, the
Company has a policy to expand this business
further. In 2005, the Company was granted
the Baht 515 million contract of WS Recovery

Boiler Project.

The Engineering System Installation and
Factory Construction for Biotechnology
Business Unit

In 2005, the Company has set up a new
business unit for engineering system installation
and factory construction for biotechnology
industry as the Company has foreseen the
opportunity of this business from the worldwide
growth of biotechnology uses in manufacturing,
research and international trade. This business

requires specific know-how of which none

Revenue Structure

of the companies in Thailand, including the
Company, has expertise and experience in

this business before.

In order to prepare for the future bidding
projects, the Company has been negotiating
with other companies for their supports
on specific know-how. Moreover, Rotary
Engineering Limited, the 100% shareholder
of Rotary Trel Pte Ltd., the Company’s major
shareholder, is a listed company in Singapore
who has expertise and experience in this
biotechnology business; therefore, the supports
from Rotary Engineering Limited is expected.
The Company deemed that this business
shall provide a relatively high return owing to
the need of specific know-how, the less
competitors as well as the high expected

growth rate.

Revenue Structure Million Y% Million % Million %
Baht Baht Baht

Revenue from Pipeline System Construction 207.16 40.67 112.91 88.25 124.13 98.48
Revenue from Engineering System 294.08 57.74 7.43 5.81 0.73 0.58
Installation & Factory Construction in

Petrochemical Business

Revenue from Other Services" 2.60 0.51 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total Revenue from Major Business 503.84 98.92 120.34 94.05 124.86 99.06
Other Income® 5.50 1.08 7.61 5.95 118 0.94

509.34 100.00 127.95 126.04

Total Revenue

W]

Remark: Revenue from other services included engineering plan drafting for air conditioner, electricity and film from IEMC

Co., Ltd. (See details in Connected Transactions).

@ Other income included management fee, interest income and others.
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TRC Consruction Public Company Limited

Projects on Hand
As of December 31, 2005, the Company had six projects on hand in the amount of Baht 898.0 million of
which Baht 487.8 million had yet to be realized.

Summary of projects on hand as of December 31, 2005:

Work Uncompleted
Project Name Value Work

Project

oeri
(MB)  Value (MB) " ened

Pipeline System Engineering Unit
SGlI Project (Constructions of E, P, C Picnic Corporation Plc. 12.90 8.39 Feb - Jul,

natural gas pipeline system 2005
and pressure control and capacity

measurement station)**

MIG-BIG GOX/GAN Pipeline E, P, C Bangkok Industrial Gas 11.08 0.10  Mar - Noy,

Extension Project Co., Ltd. 2005

MIGP04001 Pipeline Project E, P, C MIG Production Co., Ltd. 12.52 0.12  Mar - Noy,
2005

Knock-out Drum Phase E, P, C PTT Ple. 126.52 53.75  Jul 2005 -

Project I Mar 2006

Sub-Contract, Wangnoi- E, P, C CPP - TRC Joint Ven- 220.00 174.48  Jul 2005 -

Kangkhoi, Natural Gas ture for PTT Plc. Sep 2006

Pipeline Project

Total 383.02 236.84

Engineering System Installation & Factory Construction in Petrochemical Business Unit

WS Recovery Boiler E, P, ¢ Thai Incinerate Service 515.00 250.92 Feb 2005 -

Project Co., Ltd. Nov 2006

(Installation project of
steam production from
waste of which most
costs of project were
imported machines and
equipment)

Total 515.00 250.92
Grand Total 898.02 487.76

E = Engineering , P = Procurement, C = Construction

*

Remark:

ok

The project period has been extended as the project is currently suspended.
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TRC Consruction Public Company Limited

Industry Overview and Competition

Industry Overview

Natural Gas Pipeline/ Transmission Pipeline
As of December 31, 2005, PTT Plc. group (PTT

Group) has approximately 4,000 kilometers of
transmission pipeline system which includes on-land
transmission pipeline, undersea transmission pipeline
and distribution pipeline. PTT Group’s transmission
pipeline system links the natural gas resources in
Thai Gulf, and the gas pipeline from the Union of
Myanmar’s Yadana and Yadagun gas fields, which
are located at the border of Thailand and the Union of
Myanmar, with the electricity generating companies,

gas separation plants and industrial customers

For the investment and operation of transmission
pipeline as well as the supplying and distributing of
natural gas business, presently, PTT Plc. is the sole
purchaser and distributor of natural gas as well as
the sole owner and developer of the transmission

pipeline network in the country.

For distribution pipeline system, most of the investment
and the operation are also managed by PTT Plc.
While PTT Natural Gas Distribution Co., Ltd., the
joint venture company which owned by PTT Plc.,
Tractebel S.A. and CPB Equity Co., Ltd., is responsible
to distribute the natural gas to customers in Bangkok

and its boundary.

The works related to natural gas pipeline construction
in Thailand can be divided into three stages as

follows:

23

In-sea natural gas pipeline system construc-
tion is the natural gas pipeline that links the
natural gas fields with the pipeline system
on land. This work requires high technology
know-how; thereby the current players in this
business are the foreign firms with such
know-how. Presently, the Company’s business

does not engage in any business of this stage.

Cross-country natural gas pipeline system
construction is the construction of large-scale
natural gas pipeline crossed border of a country
and/or a province that requires the installation
of pressure control and capacity measurement
station through the pipeline. This large-scale
of work normally requires international
partner(s) of which the Company has partnered
with one large Chinese natural gas pipeline
construction company, China Petroleum Pipeline
Bureau (CPP). CPP is a subsidiary of China
National Petroleum Corporation (CNPC), the
biggest energy group in China. At present,
the Company joined with CPP in CPP-TRC
Joint Venture to construct and manage
Wangnoi-Kaengkhoi Natural Gas Pipeline
Project for PTT Plc. The total project value is
Baht 2,100 million where the Company has

subcontracted the work of Baht 220 million.

Distribution pipeline construction is small-

scale natural gas pipeline construction to link

Annual Report 2005
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TRC Consruction Public Company Limited

the transmission pipe with the end users such
as companies in the industrial estates. This kind
of work is the Company’s major construction

works.

Engineering System Installation & Factory

Construction in Petrochemical Business

Petrochemical industry can be divided into three stages
as follows:

1. Upstream Petrochemical Process: This process
is to convert Petroleum gas, Ethane and
Propane, and oil based product, Naphtha, into
Olefins as well as to convert Condensate into
Aromatics (Benzene, Toluene, Xylene) by
refining, separating, splitting and converting

processes.

Intermediate Petrochemical Process: The
upstream petrochemical products will be
processed and converted into intermediate
petrochemical products such as Styrene
Monomers, Vinyl Chloride Monomers, Ethylene
Glycol, Purified Terephthalic Acid, Phenol, and

Acetone.

Downstream Petrochemical Process: The
intermediate petrochemical products will be
processed and converted into downstream
petrochemical products such as plastics and
synthetic substances which are normally used
in industries such as packaging industry,
electrical alliance industry, automotive industry

and textile industry.

Thailand’s Petrochemical Industry

In 2005, the world petrochemical industry was in
an upward trend as a result of the increases in prices
and demand in petrochemical products from related
industries across the world. The operating perform-
ances of all the companies in petrochemical sector
skyrocketed. The price of energy is still increasing
and so is the price of petrochemical product. The
prices are expected to reach their peaks in 2006-
2007 and such continuing increase in gasoline price
will cause the petrochemical industry to stay in the

upward trend for another couple of years.

The petrochemical products in Thailand especially,
plastic products, are in the oversupply condition. 45
percent of total production is for export. Thailand is
the fourth largest producer of Polyethylene in Asia
(including Australia) and the fifth largest producer of

Polypropylene. Currently, the utilization rate of Olefins

25

production stood at 98% while the utilization rate
of Olefins production stood at 88%, and the utilization
rate of downstream petrochemical production
stood at 92%. The export figures of downstream
petrochemical in 2005 increased by 25% of the
previous year where China was the main market.
Presently, plastic consumption of people in Thailand
stood at 43 kilograms per person per year while
Malaysian’s and Singaporean’s consumptions stood
at 53 kilograms per person per year and 105
kilograms per person per year, respectively. These
figures imply that there is an opportunity for the
petrochemical industry in Thailand to be developed
and expanded further to serve the domestic as well
as international demands. The growth prospective
of petrochemical industry indicates that the market
for engineering system installation and factory
construction for petrochemical industry of the
Company will be consequently expanding.

Annual Report 2005
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TRC Consruction Public Company Limited

Competitors

Natural Gas Pipeline Construction

The Company has four main competitors in distribu-
tion pipeline construction as follows:

1. Italian-Thai Development Plc.

2. JFE Engineering and Construction (Thailand)
Co., Ltd.

3. Polytechnology Co., Ltd.

4. Kikuchi Industry (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

For the cross-country natural gas transmission pipeline
construction which is a large-scale construction that
requires international partner(s) to join with, the
competitors include NACAP Asia Pacific (Thailand)
Co., Ltd., Mcconnell Dowell (Thailand) Limited and
Saipem Asia Sdn. Bhd., etc.

Engineering System Installation and Factory

Construction in Petrochemical Business

As the Company has recently expanded into this
business, the competitors of the Company consist of
companies that engage in mechanical engineering
whose revenue are among Baht 1,000-3,000 million.
The target projects of the Company are the projects
that worth approximately Baht 100-1,000 million. The
Company attempts to differentiate itself from others
by partnering with alliances for their supports on
design and construction technologies for the

customers’ best satisfaction.

Competitive Strategy

The Company’s competitive strategies and business
policies can be summarized as follows:

(1) Quality Control The Company has a policy to
control the quality of work and to deliver the
work punctually in order to obtain customer’s

satisfactions.
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Reputations and Experiences of Engineers
in Management Level The management of
the Company has more than 20 years of
experience in construction business and has
reputations for its knowledge and expertise.
Consequently, it is capable to review and

oversee the works of engineering managers.

Past Credentials The Company has gained some
respects and reliabilities from the customers
with the quality of works and services in the
past. Consequently, most of the customers do
not only come back for the Company’s services

but also recommend others for the Company.

The Employee’s Capabilitics The Company
has a large number of skilled employees who
can provide efficient services to customers.
The Company also has a policy to maintain
such quality of employees by providing them

consistent training courses.

Target Customers

For the natural gas construction business unit and
the engineering system installation and factory
construction for petrochemical industry business
unit, the target customers of the Company consist
of government agencies and private companies in
energy and petrochemical businesses as well
as companies whose manufacturing bases are
located at industrial estates that are accessible to
distribution pipeline such as PTT Plc. and other

companies in Mabtaput Industrial Estate.

Industry Trend

Natural Gas Pipeline Construction

At present, natural gas can be obtained from domestic

Annual Report 2005
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and international sources both on land and in the
sea. In 2004, the capacity of natural gas production
stood at 2,892 cubic feet per day where the proportion
of domestic to international sources stood at 75:25.
The entire production is to be consumed domestically
where 77% of them will be distributed to electricity
generating users, 9% to industrial and transportation
users and the other 14% will be distributed to gas

separation plants.

The natural gas consumption in Thailand has expanded
continuously regardless of the economic crisis. The
major factors that have driven the consumption growth
include the increase in electricity consumption as
well as the government’s policy to use natural gas
substituted for fuel oil. As a result, the use of natural
gas as energy in electricity generation has been
increasing continuously. The electricity generation that
used natural gas energy (including EGAT, IPP and
SPP) in 2004 was accounted for 63.6% of the total

electricity generation.

The demand for natural gas from electricity generating
industry is anticipated to be expanding in the short
term prospect as the natural gas consumption is
proportionate to the electricity consumption as
per the forecast of Energy Consumption Forecast
Committee. From 2007 onwards when EGAT starts
purchasing electricity from IPPs that use coal
energy for electricity generation, demand in natural
gas for electricity generation will decline. However,
when considering natural gas consumptions of
industrial users and gas separation plants, it can be
anticipated that the natural gas consumption will be
sustained. For long term prospect, it is expected that
the new IPPs will use more natural gas as energy

for electricity generation owing to its reasonable price
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and its environmental-friendly feature. Also, the new
power houses that will replace the existing co-gen-
eration power houses will still use the natural gas

energy.

In addition to the increasing use of natural gas for
electricity generation, the government has a policy
to stimulate the use of natural gas in industrial and
transportation sectors with a purpose to reduce the
effects on environment as well as to ease the high oil
price crisis. Moreover, the demands on petrochemical
products from gas separation plants also increase
including the domestic demand on LPG or the demand
on Ethane from Petrochemical industry. These factors
will drive the growth of natural gas consumption in

the future.

Master plan for Natural Gas Transmission Pipeline

As of December 9, 2003, the cabinet enacted the
resolution that favored the resolution of the National
Energy Policy Council (NEPC) dated November 26,
2003 on 10 projects of the natural gas transmission
pipeline expansion according to the Transmission
Pipeline Master Plan Il (2001-2011). The investment
would be divided into 2 stages in order to be the
investment guideline for natural gas pipeline system

construction.

Subsequently on December 24, 2004, the cabinet
approved the resolution to support the National
Energy Policy Council (NEPC)’s resolution dated
July 28, 2004 on the Power Development Plan 2004
(2004-2015) of the Electricity Generating Authority
of Thailand (EGAT). The demand for electricity has
been increasing from the growth rate of 4.5 percent
per year under the Power Development Plan 2003

to be the growth rate of 6.5 percent according to the

Annual Report 2005
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Power Development Plan 2004. As a result, the
demand on natural gas to be the fuel for electricity
generating has also been increasing in a shorter
period of time compared to the previous plan. Refer
to the current economic growth; it was necessary
for PTT Plc. to review the Natural Gas Transmission
Pipeline System Master Plan Il (2001-2011) in order
to correspond with the aforementioned forecast of
demand on natural gas consumption. PTT Plc. would
enhance the efficiency of the natural gas transmission
pipeline both on land and in the sea as well as
would sprint the implementation of the second stage

plan.

Meanwhile, the revision of the Natural Gas
Transmission Pipeline System Master Plan Il (2001-
2011) was approved by the National Energy Policy
Council (NEPC) on December 23, 2004. The plan
will be used as an investment guideline for 11
natural gas pipeline system construction projects
with the total amount of Baht 157,102 million which
included the constructions of natural gas transmission
pipeline in the sea and cross-country transmission
pipeline. The investment can be divided into three

stages as follows:

The First Stage

. The installation of pressure valve station at
the Block Valve West 7 (BVW#7) Project in
Kanchanaburi to enhance the transmission
capacity from Myanmar to the maximum level
of 1,200 MMscfd. This project is expected to
be finished in mid 2005.

. The transmission pipeline construction project
for Sainoi-North and South power plants or
previously known as Bangkok and its vicinity

natural gas transmission project. This project
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is to serve the natural gas demand from
North and South co-generation power plants
as well as the demand from industrial sector
and transportation industry for the purpose
to reduce pollutions in Bangkok and its vicinity.
PTT Plc. has a project to construct 70 kilometers
of 30 inches diameter pipeline which would be
linked the Ratchaburi-Wangnoi transmission
pipeline at Sainoi district with the South power
plant and 10 kilometers of 20 inches diameter
pipeline from Bangyai to the North power plant
with the total transmission capacity of
480 MMscfd. The natural gas transmission
project to the South power plant is expected
to be finished in mid 2006 while the natural
gas transmission project to the North power
plant will be finished together with the power

plant restoration project of EGAT.

The installation project of the backup pressure
valve at Ratchaburi natural gas transmission
area. This project is to enhance the stability
and flexibility of natural gas transmitting from
Myanmar to natural gas users. The project is

expected to be finished in mid 2006.

The third natural gas transmission pipeline

system both on land and in the sea:

- The PTT Riser Platform (PRP) Project
which is expected to be finished in mid
2006.

= The construction of 418 kilometers
of 42 inches diameter natural gas
transmission pipeline in the sea from PTT
Riser Platform to Rayong. The capacity
of this transmission pipeline is 700 MMscfd

of which it would be increased to

Annual Report 2005
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1,860 MMscfd after the pressure valve
station in the sea is installed. This
project is expected to be finished in
mid 2006.

- The construction of 200 kilometers
of 42 inches diameter natural gas
transmission pipeline from Arthit field
to PTT Riser Platform which has the
maximum capacity of 1,500 MMscfd.
The project is anticipated to be finished
in late 2006.

- The construction of 110 kilometers
of 36 inches diameter natural gas
transmission pipeline from Rayong to
be linked with the on land Parallel
transmission pipeline at Bangpakong
pressure valve station with the initial
capacity of 400 MMscfd. After the
installation of the pressure valve
station on land, the capacity would
reach 1,200 MMscfd. The project is
expected to be finished in early 2006.

The Second Stage

The construction of 95 kilometers of 42 inches
diameter transmission pipeline from JDA field
to Arthit field with the maximum capacity of
1,000 MMscfd. This project is to be finished
in early 2007.

The installation of pressure valve station of
the third natural gas transmission pipeline
system for both on land and in the sea in order
to achieve the maximum capacity of natural
gas transmission. This project is anticipated
to be finished in early 2007 and in late

2006, respectively.

The construction of 80 kilometers of 36 inches
diameter from Wangnoi district to Kaengkhoi
district in Saraburi with a capacity of 510 MMscfd.
This project is to be finished in late 2006.

The installation project of the pressure valve
station in order to enhance the capacities of
the natural gas transmission pipeline from
the Thai gulf at Wangnoi district to Rachaburi
and the Sainoi-North and South natural gas
transmission project. This project is expected

to be finished in early 2009.

The construction of 220 kilometers of 36 inches
diameter natural gas transmission pipeline from
Rayong to Wangnoi district, Ayutthaya, with
the maximum capacity of 1,100 MMscfd. This
project is to be finished in early 2010.

The Third Stage

The construction of 280 kilometers of 32 inches
diameter natural gas transmission pipeline
from the third natural gas transmission pipeline
system to natural gas transmission area in
Ratchaburi with a total capacity of 500 MMscfd.
This project is to be finished in early 2012.

The construction of 150 kilometers of 16 inches
diameter transmission pipeline that links the
third natural gas transmission pipeline system
in the sea to Tub-Sakae district, Prajuab
Kirikhan, with the maximum capacity of 100
MMscfd. This project is anticipated to be
finished in early 2012.

This natural gas transmission pipeline master plan would

enhance the capacities of Eastern and Western natural

Annual Report 2005
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TRC Consruction Public Company Limited

gas transmission pipeline systems of PTT Plc. to

their maximums from 3,170 MMscfd to 5,350 MMscfd.

PTT Plc. has applied for BOI privilege of which the
Board of Investment, on July 27, 2004, has passed
the resolution to grant the privilege to the natural
gas transmission project of Sainoi South Power plants.
Also, on December 27, 2004, the Board of Invest-
ment has passed the resolution to grant more privi-
leges for other projects of the master plan for natu-
ral gas transmission pipeline as follows:

. The third natural gas transmission pipeline sys-

tem project both on land and in the sea;

. The JDA - Arthit natural gas transmission pipeline
project ;
. The installation of pressure valve station for the

third natural gas transmission pipeline

system; and

. The Wangnoi - Kaengkhoi natural gas

transmission pipeline project.

The Petrochemical Master Plan indicates that a large
number of natural gas pipeline constructions will be
undertaken which will be the good prospect for the
Company especially for a large-scale project as the
Company has partnered with China Petroleum Pipeline
Bureau (CPP), a subsidiary of the biggest energy
company in China, China National Petroleum

Corporation (CNPC).

Product Resources

of Thailand.
Capacity

Human Resource

Engineering System Installation and Factory Con-

struction in Petrochemical Business

Petrochemical industry has continuing growth over the
past 20 years where the consumption of petrochemical
products has rapidly increased corresponding to the
growth of overall economy. In addition, as Thailand
has launched the Petrochemical Master Plan | and I
in 1989 and 1994, respectively, the export figures of
petrochemical products expanded significantly since
the implementation of Petrochemical Master Plan I
had started in 1994. Presently, the Government has
successfully drafted the Petrochemical Master Plan
Ill for the period of 2007-2022. According to this
master plan, Thailand aims to be the first of Petro-
chemical producer in ASEAN. Also, the free trade
zone within the region will create more opportunities
in business transactions. The implementation of this
master plan will not only strengthen the petrochemi-
cal industry in Thailand but will also result in the
additional revenue of Baht 270,000 million from this
industry. Moreover, Thailand’s Petrochemical indus-
try is expected to be expanding similar to the expan-
sion of overall economy which is led by the growth
of related industries such as automotive industry,
packaging Industry and electronic and electrical

appliance industry.

Consequently, the Company expects that the
opportunity for engineering system installation and
factory construction for petrochemical industry unit will
be increasing from the expansion of the petrochemical

industry as well as the growth of the overall economy

The Company operates as a construction contractor
where the number of workforce needed in any period

of time depends on the size of the project that the
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TRC Consruction Public Company Limited

Company succeeds the bid; therefore, the Company
has a policy to hire only a sufficient number of staffs
where the Company provides Standby Team including
welding staffs in case of staff insufficiency. Moreover,
in case of additional works, the Company may hire
temporary engineers and staffs including welding
staffs. The Company has never faced any problems

associated to the insufficiency of workforce before.

Source of Fund

The Company has a policy to finance each project
with project finance facilities from financial institutions.
In some cases, the Company may request for the
financial support(s) from the partner(s) to be used
as the project’s working capital. Moreover, the IPO
proceeds that the Company received in late 2005
can also be used as working capital for projects that

the Company has won the bid.

Sub-Contractors

Normally, the Company has no policy to subcontract
its works especially for the natural gas pipeline
construction project. However, in some cases, the
Company may need to subcontract some parts of
the works that Company has no expertise in such as
foundation works. The Company selects subcontractors
from their financial status, past credentials as well
as their readiness of workforce and machines and
equipment. Moreover, the Company has a policy to
set the conditions including the acceptance of job,
the guarantee, the inspection and the claims of the
subcontract to be similar with those of the main

contract that the Company signed with the customers.

37

Machines and Equipment

The Company has a policy to purchase some of the
machines & equipment that are used for basic works
and to rent other machines and equipment for projects
on a case by case basis. However, the Company
may purchase such machines and equipment in case
that there are a large number of abundant projects
or it is difficult for the Company to rent the equipment

in the future.

Raw Materials

The raw materials used by the Company can be
divided into two groups as follows:

1. Exclusive construction materials which are the
major part of total raw materials used including
pipe, valves, etc. The project owners normally
indicates the specific details of these materials;
therefore, the Company will have to buy them
from domestic or international distributors or
manufacturers. However, the project owners
usually specify more than one supplier and
normally before the bid, the Company will
negotiate and request such suppliers to maintain
the prices of the materials for a specific

period of time.

Common construction materials which are the
less part of the total raw materials used
including wire, sandpaper, etc. The Company
normally purchases these materials domestically
from suppliers who have long-term relationship
with the Company or other construction shops

as appropriate.
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TRC Consruction Public Company Limited

Risk from relying on parent company,

alliances and management team

Owing to the fact that credentials, size of

capital, size of assets and specific know-how

are required for most of the project bids,
the Company, in some cases, might have to
form a joint venture with Rotary Engineering

Limited, which is the parent company of the

major shareholder, affiliates or alliances in order

to be qualified to enter into a project bid.

Therefore, the Company may not be able to

bid for the project or may have to approach

another companies to form a joint venture in
case that the parent company of the major
shareholder, the affiliates or the existing
alliances refuse to bid for the project with the

Company. In 2005, the Company entered into

three project bids in the form of joint venture.

the projects are as follw:

1. Outside Interconnecting Pipeline of
Aromatic (Thailand) Plc.: The Company
jointed with Thai Rotary Engineering
Limited under the name of TRC-TREL.

2. Phu-Horm-Khonkaen Natural Gas
Pipeline Project of Aromatic Hess
(Thailand) Limited : The Company joined
with China Petroleum Pipeline Bureau
under the name of Cpp-TRC in order
to enter the bid.

3. Wangnoi-Kaengkhoi Natural Gas
Pipeline Project of PTT Plc. : The

Company joined with China Petroleum

39

Pipeline Bureau under the name of CPP-TRC.

For the first two projects, the Company did
not overcome the bid, however, CPP-TRC Joint
Venture Won the third bid and the Project is
under construction. However, the fact that the
Company has gained experience in larger
projects and has successfully negotiated with

more new alliances will help mitigate this risk.

Not only depending on parent company, affiliates
and alliances as described, the Company also
relies on the experience and expertise of the
management team to specify the scope of
work and the appropriate price for each project.
Moreover, the management's strong relationship
with the clients also favors the Company in
project bidding. Therefore, a risk may incur
for the company if it loses such group of
management; in that it may lose these

advantages in project bidding in the future.

Risk from Business expansion

The Company has expanded its engineering
system installation and factory construction
business for petrochemical sector of which
the Company has signed the Baht 515 million
contract for construction service of WS Recovery
Boiler. In addition, the Company also acquired
sub-contract work with the value of Baht 220
million from CPP-TRC Joint Venture in

Wangnoi-Kaengkhoi Natural Gas Pipeline

Annual Report 2005
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TRC Consruction Public Company Limited

Project which worth Baht 2,100 million. Those
projects are much more larger than other
projects that the Company has ever done. As
a result, the Company may face risks of
working capital deficiency and lack of workforce
from undertaking those new larger projects.
However, the Company’s management team
has past experiences in petrochemical
engineering projects which enable them to
assess the Company’s capacity and estimate
the working capital for the projects appropriately.
Additionally, those same risks of working capital
and workforce deficiency may incur the
Company’s new business unit which was set
up to undertake the projects related to the
future biotechnology business as it is a very
new business for the Company. Also, the
growth of this business relies significantly on
the government policy. Therefore, changes or
delays in the policy may affect the project’s
continuation which will, thus, affect the
Company’s performance. Nevertheless, the
Company has been prudently preparing and
studying each of the potential projects and
also seeking for new alliances to support this
new business. Furthermore, with close
monitoring of the government policy, the
Company is confident that the risks from its

new business are limited.

Risk associated with the dependence on a
few numbers of customers

In the past, the Company’s main revenue was
from the natural gas pipeline system construction

for energy and petrochemical businesses,

a1

4.

mostly from PTT Plc. or its related companies.
In 2004, the Company’s revenue from PTT
Plc. stood at Baht 38.04 million or equivalent
to 31.61% of the Company’s total revenue.
This led to a risk of revenue decreases in
case that the Company does not have any
natural gas pipeline system construction jobs
from PTT group. Since the Company expanded
the business into the engineering system
installation and factory construction for
petrochemical industry, the revenue from PTT
Plc., including the revenue from subcontract
job of CPP-TRC Joint Venture, decreased to
be 25.48% of the total revenue in 2005.
However, the nature of construction business
that the Company may have the different major
customers at a time might cause group of
PTT Plc. to become the largest customer of
the Company again in the future. In 2005, the
revenue from Thai Incinerate Service Co., Ltd.,
the counter party in WS Recovery Boiler Project,
stood at Baht 264.1 million or equivalent to

51.98% of the Company’s total revenue.

Risk from inconstant revenue

The Company engages in the construction
business of which most of the jobs are granted
through the bidding process. Therefore, the
revenue of the Company may fluctuate in case
that there is any postponement of the project
or the Company fails to succeed the bid.
However, the growth of natural gas business
and the fact that there are a few capability
contractors in the natural gas pipeline business

as well as the new business expansion of the

Annual Report 2005
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TRC Consruction Public Company Limited

engineering system installation and factory
construction for petrochemical industry, which
the Company has already succeeded the job
in 2005, will enable the Company to maintain

the constancy of revenue.

Moreover, the fact that the Company has set
up a new business unit of engineering system
installation and factory construction for
biotechnology industry will help mitigate the
dependence on one industry in the future.
Currently, the Company is under the process
of preparation for entering into the future project

bid.

Risk associated with the project delay

The Company may face a risk of incremental
expenses or project damage expense charge
in case that there is any delay on project.
The delay of the projects may come from the
construction by the Company’s team or the owner,
such as a sudden change in construction and
installation plan, a liquidity problem, etc. For
the delay caused by the owner, the Company
may face a risk of incremental expenses.
However, the Company can limit this risk by
managing the workforce and expenses
effectively in case of any delay. Also, the
Company can negotiate regarding compensation
with the owner as much as possible As in
the past the Company used to succeed in

negotiation with the project owner.

a3

In case that the delay is caused by the Company,
the risk of damage expenses claimed by the
owner can be expected. To protect this kind
of risk, the project planning as well as the
preparation of equipment, skilled staffs and
experienced engineers are required in order
to complete the construction punctually. However,
the Company never has the record of project

delay before.

Risk associated with the fluctuation of
prices of construction materials

In the construction business, the fluctuation of
construction material prices has a direct effect
on the construction cost as well as performance
of the Company. In project bidding, the Company
sets the fixed bidding price from the quantities
and prices of construction materials to be used
for the project. If the prices of construction
materials change during the project, the Company
will not be able to control the cost as per the
initial budget. Consequently, the Company has
the risk from the changes in prices of
construction materials that might affect the
performance of the Company. In order to
mitigate that risk, the Company proposes the
bid by using the construction material prices,
fixed by the major suppliers of all those
significant costly materials such as machines,
gas pipes, valves, etc. for the specified period
of time that usually covers the construction

period. However, the Company does not have

Annual Report 2005
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TRC Consruction Public Company Limited

the policy to stock any construction materials
or to speculate the construction material’'s

prices.

Risk from the dependence of suppliers and/
or producers

The Company’s main revenue, the construction
services as well as the construction materials
are related to the natural gas industry. Also,
in practice, the construction contracts usually
specify the vendors list for each project;
therefore, the Company has to rely on a small
number of suppliers and/or producers whose
names are on the vendors list. If such suppliers
and/or producers set higher prices for the
Company than they do for the competitors,
the Company may not be able to win the
bidding projects or may have lower gross profit
margin which will affect its performance.
However, the project owners usually specify
more than one supplier and/or producer. Also,
the Company has developed good relationships
with suppliers and/or producers in the natural
gas industry whose names are usually on the
vendors list. Therefore, the Company has some

negotiation power to mitigate the risk.

Risk from the fact that the major
shareholder and related companies are
engaged in similar business

The Company’s major shareholder, Rotary Trel
Pte Ltd., a Singaporean firm, is 100% owned
by Rotary Engineering Limited, a listed company
in Singapore Stock Exchange. Rotary

Engineering Limited directly and indirectly holds

45

74% of Thai Rotary Engineering Limited which
engages in the engineering service and
chemical tanks construction for petrochemical
industry, similar to the Company. Currently,
the Company has two directors of Thai
Rotary Engineering Limited, Mr. Loh Eng Kee
and Miss Jongkolnee Tansuvan, and one
management of Rotary Engineering Limited,
Mr. Tan Teck Seng, representing Rotary
Engineering Limited on the Company’s Board
of Directors. Rotary Engineering Limited has
interest and control over the operations of
both companies; therefore, the conflicts of
interest between the two companies are likely

to occur.

However, the Company and Thai Rotary
Engineering Limited have expertise in different
aspects while the Company is specialized in
pipe and steel structures. Thai Rotary
Engineering Limited is specialized in chemical
tanks. In addition, two directors of the Company
who also serve Thai Rotary Engineering Limited
have submitted the declaration letter to the
Board of Directors that they will not recommend
or make any decision that could lead to the
conflict of interests. Rotary Engineering Limited
has also submitted the letter indicated that
it will support the Company with the policy
“combine but not compete”. Furthermore,
the Company also has other groups of
shareholders including Mrs. Paichit Rattananon’s
group, Mr. Paitoon Goserakwong and Mr. Narindr
Vangsrivadhanagul, who accumulatively hold

33.34% of the Company’s total shares which
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could make them be able to balance the power

of authority.

Risk associated with the sufficiency of
working capital

Construction business requires high expenses
varied by the project sizes; therefore, it is
necessary for the Company to have sufficient
working capital for the projects on hand. The
working capital will be used for the bidding
process and the preliminary phrase of the
construction as well as will be used as collateral
for bank’s facilities such as letter of guarantee
and/or other credit lines. In case that the
Company has insufficient working capital,
the Company might not be able to acquire
new projects nor to finish the projects on hand
which means that the Company may have to
pay for damage claims as stated in each
contracts. In the past, natural gas project
required approximately 30% of the total project
value. In order to avoid this risk, the policy of
conservative working capital management has
been followed effectively where the Company
manages the payment period for all expenses
to be in line with the payment period of the project
owner. Moreover, the Company has consistently
negotiated with financial institutions in order
to ask for their supports of project financing.
Also, the Company still have the initial public
offering proceeds to be used as working
capital which the Company deemed that it
will be sufficient for the future business

operation.

a7

10.

11.

Foreign Exchange Risk

As the Company normally imports raw materials
for most of the projects, the Company may
face the risk from the fluctuation of foreign
currency exchange. Furthermore, as of
December 31, 2005, the Company had
outstanding obligation of Euro 2.3 million of
which the Company had yet to cover this
position with forward contract. Consequently,
the Baht depreciation against the Euro or any
other currencies that the Company has opened
positions can cause the adversely effects on
the financial status and the net profit of the
Company. Normally, the bidding price of the
Company already includes the spread on for-
eign currency exchange in order to mitigate
the risk. However, the high fluctuation of
foreign currency exchange can lead to the
possibility that the bidding price is lower than
costs. Therefore, the Company is closely moni-
toring the Euro and at the time to submit the
Letter of Credit, the Company will enter into
forward contract in order to prevent the risk

from foreign exchange.

Risk associated with the workforce

Experienced and skilled engineers are valuable
assets of the Company. As project managers
or project engineers, their responsibilities are
to ensure the completion of all the projects.
Therefore, the Company may have some
operational risk from losing them. In order to
mitigate this risk, the Company has employed

an appropriate number of engineers as per-

Annual Report 2005
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manent staffs. Also, the Company has
encouraged the loyalty as well as built the
family-liked environment. Additionally, consistency
training programs are provided. As the Company
has adopted the policy to maintain the fixed
costs at their lowest, the sufficient number of
staffs has been hired. In some cases, the
Company may need to hire temporary staffs,
including the welding staff, during the project
loaded period. Therefore, the Company may
face the insufficiency of staff in case that the
Company cannot find enough temporary welding
staffs to serve the workload. However, as the
workload of the Company has been constant,
the Company has been able to maintain the
temporary welding staffs. In addition, the Company
also set up the Standby Team, including some
welding staffs, for emergency cases such as
time the daily welding staff cannot work.
Consequently, the risk involved with temporary

staffs should be reduced.

49
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Risk from the customer’s default

In case that the project owner and/or the counter
party are unable to pay the construction fee,
the Company’s liquidity and performance may
be affected as the Company’s main revenue
is from construction contract. However, most
of the companies in natural gas industry are
large and reputable. Thus, the risk of default
should be limited. In order to avoid this risk,
the Company has a policy to acquire only the
projects of financially strong owners. As of
December 31, 2005, the net accounts receivable
of the Company stood at Baht 92.3 million
where 43.7% of them were undue and less-
than-30-day overdue, 33.98% were overdue
by 30-60 days and 22.32% were overdue by
more than 60 days. It is normal for this kind
of business to have the overdue accounts
receivable of more than 60 days as the cus-
tomers, in some case, may have to charge
the fee from the project owner before making

the payment to the Company.
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TRC Construction Public Company Limited

Shareholding Structure and Management

Shareholders

Major shareholders as of December 19, 2005:

Name Number of Shares
1. Rotary Trel Pte Ltd." 45,000,000
2. KPK 1999 Co., Ltd.” 35,000,000
3. Mrs. Paichit Rattananon® 10,000,000
4. Mrs. Waranee Sereewiwatthana 6,500,000
5. SCB TAVEESUB 3 OPEN END FUND 2,634,700
6. Mr. Narindr Vangsrivadhanagul 2,500,000
7. Mr. Paitoon Goserakwong 2,500,000
8. THAI CAPITAL FUND 2,388,500
9. SCB TAWEESUB OPEN END FUND 2,171,700
10. SCB TAWEESUB 2 OPEN END FUND 1,712,500

Total 110.407.400
Number of total paid-up shares 150,000,000

Remark (1) Rotary Engineering Limited holds 100% shares of Rotary Trel Pte Ltd.
(2) The group of Mrs. Paichit Rattananon consists of Mrs. Paichit Rattananon and KPK 1999 Co., Ltd. which is 99.99%
owned by Mrs. Paichit Rattananon. The 4.5 million over-allotment shares that Mrs. Paichit Rattananon had lent to
Kim Eng Securities (Thailand) Plc. during the subscription period of the Company’s IPO shares (December 14-16,
2005) were included.
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Management

Organization Chart

Organization Chart as of December 31, 2005

The Board of Directors

The Audit Commitee

The Executive Commitee

President

__________ Internal Audit

Engineering Marketing & _ Finance & General International Business
Operation Business Development Administration (Mr. Narindr
- . (Mr. Peerasak Sukpenkaew) (Mr. Paitoon Goserakwong : Vangsrivadhanagul :
(Mr. James Jordan Fleming) . .
temporary in charge) temporary in charge)
Marketing & . . . General
i i Operation Accounting Finance
Engineering Administration

Remark: * The Company has yet to appoint the head of Accounting, Finance and General Administration Department of which Mr. Paitoon Goserakwong is temporarily in charge. Currently,

Ms. Ounruen Sujarittham is a Manager of Finance Division and Ms. Rewadee Ardharn is a Manager of Accounting Division.

paiwi] Aundwory 2ligng uoudNISUOD) Y]



lasv $10n1sdAns
Ty $wnissani1sresuseny dsznauludaame
NIINNT 3 70 A2 ANIINNTUSEN AN IINNIT

A373 DU LAZAMASNIINNIIUIAT laadieaztdundiai

AMSNIINNITUIIN

B Suft 31 SN AnENITTNNIUSEMLTNauds
A33MMNT 9 Y Gait

1. welwaas  Sauuun

UI2IUNTINAT - AUNUANNLIHN LaRALa 1999
10

wigiuns wised auna

ATTNNTT

winlwensd Tn asnse

ATTNNTT

walan 89 @

N3INNNT - FaunuanUSEM Ten3 1duiilese
10

WM NANE GU 217708

N3INNNT - FaunuanUSEn Tsans 1Susuiess
10

WILNU LAN 179

N3INNNT - FaunuanuSEn Tsans 1Susuiess
10

6. UNW. AT AGEan?
ATTNNITUAZLUIZDIUNTINNITATIA DU

36, ALFE L QL D89
ATTHNNITUAZNITHAITATIA DL

7. @3, 1ONTY  AesnsaIiw

NITHNITLASNITINNIIAIIN B

Togd w9 MguiTan  AIA5II L“ﬂw,amgmiﬂmz

NIINNITUITEN

nﬁumséﬁé’ﬂmammugnﬁun%ﬁmq

UIIINAAT SAUIUKA WIBUSUNS wIeAITuna

a a

6 =1 o € [ 6
u’]ileW""ﬂmiﬂ In“a5n®ed wielar 89 @ w9 1I3Na

SIEOWUUSDU 2548

54

U3UN foNsB Aou OSABU D0 (UML)

a

B AU ITIH NITNNNT adluFrauitasataiatodas

AUAZU LA AR 289UTENY

YDULUA WA WAZANNTUAATUUDIAMINTTNANT

3,

Tuldarunguang U9

[

f

'
v A

UARAUIN

v

19

@

dateauaauSENY maamumaﬁmzﬂgu%’ﬁaﬁu

A

v 19 A Ay v [N = 9]
nmmimiawmﬂmum&mmn%ﬂizqmgna

| 3

Hunoun13duiiuns 1 asfingrananiivua

vy Mwe  ad v o . r

l#daeldTunanuszyuiiiodu nsvhmanian

::4' % U A o ] 4’ a o €

g leein N3 ldnnIasrune luds S unswe

A A a o eao o &

WAz ITENTOVNE UNTNEN 1AANNL LN

o Q 6 1 = dl

YA NARANN SN AU TZne g wIaa1ud
WBUNTNIAUG Mviua Dudu

a o

° = = 2 o
ﬂ"l‘]r‘i%@‘ﬁi?]L‘]_]aﬂ%LLﬂaﬂ”ﬁ@ﬂiiNﬂ’]iaN@’]u’]'ﬂ

mmsﬁa%aaﬂﬁ’uﬁﬁm

MAUALLEL8 ﬂaﬂq“n% LRSNANIINITANLIL
UVBILIENY LLazm‘sﬁwﬁug\LL@IﬁB'JWU%Wi
gudiunislfiduluanulave nagnd uaz
- d. v 1 A A a

AANINIAUA b3 0819NUTE " NEAINLAS
U3z nna LNDLANYAAININLATIHENA 9 aun

aﬁmmzmn@ﬂmﬂwﬂ'ﬂﬁu I unlenng

ee

=
0
A o A Ao Y =

‘mamimLuumuﬂ@]@ﬂ@im}’;’mmmiamms

'
L a

au‘,mmﬂ‘ﬂﬂsmgm

v

n

q

A
N1

(=3

Aasonda ulalwIosnd 192 A 1w wan
3 sutszanm lassmaasuawalug §1u1a
M3UIAS uazaMIBulaanfinguaneivue
5. Usniuman U URuLas M AUAAIn o LWNY

PpIE18UINNT

JuAeraudanaLIzNauNTLAN TUHUAIUL DY
A18u5%91T  TagiaNasbanasaNIzaTEs

lunsufiees



TRC Consruction Public Company Limited

Management Structure
The Company has three committees consist of Board
of Directors, Audit Committee and Executive Com-

mittee as per the following details:

The Board of Directors

As of December 31, 2005, the Board of Directors
consists of nine directors as follows:

1. Mrs. Paichit Rattananon

Chairman - Representative of KPK 1999 Co., Ltd.
Mr. Narindr Vangsrivadhanagul

Director

Mr. Paitoon Goserakwong

Director

Mr. Loh Eng Kee

Director - Representative of Rotary Engineering
Limited

Ms. Jongkolnee Tansuvan

Director - Representative of Rotary Engineering
Limited

Mr. Tan Teck Seng

Director - Representative of Rotary Engineering
Limited

Assoc. Prof. Kamjorn Tatiyakavee, MD.
Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee
Assoc. Prof. Pises Sethsathira

Director and Audit Committee

Assoc. Prof Aekkachai Nittayagasetwat,
PH.D.,FRM.

Director and Audit Committee

Ms. Ounruen Sujarittham

The Company’s Secretary

Authorized Directors
Mrs. Paichit Rattananon, Mr. Narindr Vangsrivadhanagul,
Mr. Paitoon Goserakwong, Mr. Loh Eng Kee and

Ms. Jongkolnee Tansuvan, two out of these five directors
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shall be able to sign with the Company’s seal.

Scope of Duties and Responsibilities of the Board of

Directors

1. To perform duties in accordance with laws,
objectives, article of association as well as
the resolutions of the shareholders’ meeting
except for the transactions that shall be
approved by the shareholders’ meeting such
as the connected transaction, the acquisition
and disposition of assets, the purchasing and
selling of significant assets as per the regulations

of the SET or any other relevant authorities;

To appoint or change the Authorized Directors

of the Company;

To set the policies, strategies and directions
for the Company except for the policies that
require the shareholders’ meeting approval as
well as to govern the management to effectively
perform their duties according to such policies,
strategies and directions with a purpose of
the shareholders’ wealth and sustainable

growth of the Company;

To review and approve the significant
transactions such as business plan, budget,
large investment, management’s authorities

and any other transactions required by laws;

To evaluate the management’s performance

as well as to determine their remunerations;

To be responsible for the operating result and
the management performance with good

intention and care;

Annual Report 2005
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TRC Consruction Public Company Limited

10.

11.

To ensure that the Company has reliable
accounting system, financial reports and
auditing process as well as to provide the
measurement to assess the appropriateness
of the internal control system and the efficiency
and effectiveness of internal auditing, risk

management and financial reporting;

To ensure that the conflict of interests between
the Company and related persons does not

exist;

To set the Company’s rules and internal

procedures;

To report the Board of Directors’ responsibilities
for financial reports together with external
auditor’s report in the Company’s annual
report. Such Board of Directors’ report shall
include all the subjects as specified in the code

of conduct for directors of the listed company;

The Board of Directors shall be able to authorize
the following transactions after they receive
the shareholders’ meeting approval to do so.
For the transactions that might lead to any
conflicts of interests, the director who might
have such conflict of interest must not vote
on that transaction.

(a) The transactions that are required by
law to receive the shareholders’ meeting
approval.

The transactions that might lead to any
conflict of interests as well as are required
by laws and/or regulations of the SET

to receive the shareholders’ meeting

approval.
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12.

The transactions as specified below shall be
approved by the Board of Directors’ meeting
and the shareholders’ meeting with not less
than three-fourth of the voting right of the
shareholders who are present at the meeting
and have the right to vote.
(a) To sale or transfer the whole or any
significant part of the Company;
(b) To purchase or acquire business of
other companies or a private company;
(c) To engage in, amend or cancel the
rental agreement of the whole or any
significant business of the Company,
to assign others to manage the Company
and to merge the Company with others
with a purpose of profit sharing;

To amend the Company’s Memorandum

of Association or the Article of Association;

To increase, and/or decrease capital,

to issue debentures, to merge and to

liquidate the Company;

(f) To perform any other activities that are
required by securities laws or regulations
of the SET to have the approval of
the Board of Directors’ meeting and
the shareholders’ meeting with such

aforementioned voting condition.

The Board of Directors shall appoint some of
the directors as members of Executive
Committee to perform the works as assigned

by the Board of Directors.

However, such appointment does not include the

authority to approve the transactions that such

directors and/or their related persons have the

conflict of interests. Also, the connected transaction

Annual Report 2005
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TRC Consruction Public Company Limited

and the acquisition and disposition of significant

assets must be approved by the shareholders’

meeting as stated in the regulations of the SET.

The Audit Committee

As of December 31, 2005, the Audit Committee

consists of three independent directors as follows:

1.

Assoc. Prof. Kamjorn Tatiyakavee, MD.
Chairman of the Audit Committee

Assoc. Prof. Pises Sethsathira

Audit Committee

Assoc. Prof Aekkachai Nittayagasetwat, PH.D.,
FRM. Audit Committee

Ms. Sarinthip Laomahamek

Secretary to the Audit Committee

Scope of duties and responsibilities of the Audit

Committee

1.

To review and ensure that the disclosure of
information in financial statement is accurate
and adequate by cooperating with the
Company’s external auditor and management
who is responsible for the quarterly and
annually financial statement. Also, to recommend
the external auditor to review or audit any
transactions deemed significant during the

auditing period;

To review internal control system and internal
audit system to ensure appropriateness and
effectiveness by cooperating with external

auditor and internal auditors;

To review and ensure that the Company’s
operations are in compliance with the rules

and regulations of the SEC and the SET, as
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well as relevant laws;

4. To consider, select and nominate the external
auditor and also propose the external auditor's
remuneration to the Board of Directors for the
approval of the shareholders’ meeting by
considering the reputation, resources, capacity
as well as the experience of such external

auditor;

5. To ensure the accuracy and completeness of
the disclosure of connected transactions or
transactions that may lead to any conflict of
interests. Also, to approve such transactions
before propose them to the Board of Directors’

and/or the shareholders’ meeting;

6. To review the financial management and risk
management policies as assigned by the Board
of Directors and agreed upon by the Audit

Committee;

7. To prepare corporate governance report of
the Audit Committee for disclosure in the
Company’s Annual Report. The Chairman of
the Audit Committee shall sign in such report;

and

8. To perform any other duties as assigned by
the Board of Directors and agreed upon by

the Audit Committee.

In order to perform such duties and responsibilities,
the Audit Committee has the power to request the
cooperation in forms of reports, opinions, documents
from the management and staffs of the Company. The

Board of Directors has the right to adjust and/or change

Annual Report 2005
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TRC Consruction Public Company Limited

the scope of duties and responsibilities of the Audit

Committee as deemed necessary or appropriate.

The Executive Committee

As of December 31, 2005, the Executive Committee

consists of five members as follows:

1.

Mr. Narindr Vangsrivadhanagul
Chairman of the Executive Committee
Mrs. Paichit Rattananon

Member of Executive Committee

Mr. Paitoon Goserakwong

Member of Executive Committee

Mr. James Jordan Fleming

Member of Executive Committee

Mr. Peerasak Sukpenkaew

Member of Executive Committee

Scope of duties and responsibilities of the Executive

Committee

1.

To plan and set the policies, directions, strategies
and major operational structure of the Company
corresponding to economic and competitive
conditions and propose to the Board of Director

for approval;

To set the business plan, budget and
management authorities of the Company and

propose to the Board of Directors for approval;

To oversee the Company’s operations to ensure
that they are in compliance with the business
policies, business plan and strategies which

have been approved by the Board of Directors;

To consider the engagement in business
contracts and/or any other asset purchasing

contracts in relation to the business of the

61

10.

11.

Company as well as to set the procedures

and negotiation methods for such contracts;

To approve the capital expenditure as stated
in the annual business plan which has been

approved by the Board of Directors;

To be responsible for any financial transactions
with banks including account opening, lending,
borrowing, providing lending facilities, managing
the collateral, pledging, mortgage and guarantee
as well as selling, purchasing and registering
land deeds for the benefits of the Company

as per the approval of the Board of Directors;

To consider profit and loss of the Company
and to propose the interim or annual dividend

and propose to the Board of Directors;

To consider and compare the Company’s quarter
operating performance with the budget and

propose to the Board of Directors;

To employ, to appoint, to transfer, to discharge,
to dismiss, to determine remuneration of, to
give reward to and to raise salaries, wages
and bonus of employees in management level
for Assistant Vice President and higher

positions;

To do any other duties in order to support the
aforementioned duties or as delegated to do

so by the Board of Directors; and

To consider and report to the Board of Directors
the transactions which are in questions of

fraud or illegitimate or irregular activities.

Annual Report 2005
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TRC Consruction Public Company Limited

The Executive Committee is authorized to empower
the management of the Company to approve any

financial transactions as appropriate.

However, the aforementioned approval must not be
the approval of the transactions that enables any
executive directors or any empowered management
to approve for transactions that might lead to a conflict
of interest (as specified by the regulations of the
SEC and the SET) between such persons and the

Company or the subsidiary (if any).

The Board of Directors is authorized to amend the
scope of duties and responsibilities of the Executive

Committee as appropriate.

Management

As of December 31, 2005, the Company’s management
consists of :

1. Mr. Paitoon Geserakwong

President and Acting Vice President, Finance
and General Administration Department

Mr. Narindr Vangsrivadhanagul

Acting Vice President, Oversea Project
Department

Mr. James Jordan Fleming

Vice President, Engineering Marketing and
Operation Department

Mr. Peerasak Sukpenkaew

Vice President, Business Development
Department

Mr. Sakda Tantivathanakul

Assistant Vice President, Engineering Marketing
Division

Mr. Chaveng Reesrikitti

Assistant Vice President, Operation Division
Ms. Ounruen Sujarittham

Manager, Finance Division

63

8. Ms. Rewadee Ardharn

Manager, Accounting Division

Scope of duties and responsibilities of President

1. To oversee and to approve day-to-day
business operations as well as to be able to
empower the management or other employees
to manage day-to-day business operation as
appropriate;

2. To manage and control the general business
operation of the Company;

3. To perform any duties that are delegated by
the Board of Directors;

4, To employ, to appoint, to transfer, to discharge,
to dismiss, to determine remuneration of, to
give reward to and to raise salaries, wages
and bonus of employees in operational level as
well as to appoint the employer’s representative
for the Company’s provident fund committee;
5 To approve and delegate the authority to pay
for the purchase of assets for benefits of the
Company as well as to approve for the
engagement in any financial activities as per
the approved guidelines of the Board of
Directors and/or the Executive Committee;

6. To be able to create orders, procedures,
announcements and memos with a purpose
to ensure that the business operations are in
compliance with the policies, for the best
interest of the Company and to keep order
and discipline of the Company;

7. To be able to act on behalf of the Company

Annual Report 2005
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TRC Consruction Public Company Limited

and to represent the Company in performing
any related actions for the best interest of the

Company;

8. To approve the appointment of relevant advisors
as necessary under the budget that has been

approved by the Board of Directors; and

9. To perform any other duties as delegated by
the Board of Directors and/or the Executive

Committee.

President shall be directed by and directly report to
the Executive Committee and shall perform duties in
compliance with the guidelines and regulations stated

by the Executive Committee.

However, the President shall have no authority to
perform anything in relation to the transactions that
he/she and/or the related parties might have a conflict
of interests (as specified by the regulations of the
SEC and the SET).

The Director Recruitment

As the Company has no Recruitment Committee,
the nomination of directors is the responsibility of
the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall
nominate suitable candidates who have relevant
knowledge, capability and experience and propose
them to the shareholders’ meeting for their approval

as per the following procedure.

1. Each of the shareholders shall have one vote.

2. The shareholders shall vote for one person at
a time.

3. The voting results of each candidate shall be

ranked in order descending from the highest

number of votes received to the lowest, and
shall be appointed as directors in that order until
all of the director positions are filled. Where
the votes case for candidates in descending
order are tied, which would otherwise cause
the number of directors to be exceeded, the

Chairman of the shareholders’ meeting shall vote.

One-third (1/3) of the directors shall resign on the
annual general meeting of shareholders, however, in
case that the number of directors is not dividable by
three, they shall retire by the number closest to

one-third.

The directors resigning in the first and second years
after the registration of the Company shall be selected
by drawing. In subsequent years, the director who
has been in the post longest shall resign. A director

who resigns under this procedure may be re-elected.

Criteria for Independent Directors’ Nomination

Nomination Process of the Independent Directors

The Board of Directors shall preliminary consider
suitable persons whose qualifications are in accordance
with the regulations of the SEC. Also, the candidates
shall have useful knowledge and capability that are
useful for the Company. All of the candidates shall

be appointed by the shareholders’” meeting.

Qualifications of the Independent Directors

1. Holding shares not more that five percent of
the total shares that are eligible to vote of the
Company, parent company, subsidiary, affiliated

company and related parties.

2. Being a director who is not a staff, an employee,
an advisor or a controlling person of the

Company, parent company, subsidiary, affiliated

Annual Report 2005
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TRC Construction Public Company Limited

company and related parties. 4. Being a director who has no business relation

with the Company, parent company, subsidi-

3. Being a director who is not related to ary, affiliated company and related parties in
connected persons of the Company either by the way that might lead to the inability to
blood, by marriage or by legal bindings. freely perform or express the opinion with

regard to the Company’s operation.

© © © o o © o o o o o © o © 0 © © 0 6 © 0 © © © © © 0 © 6 © ° © © © © © © © © °© © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © © °© © © © © © © ° © © ©

Directors and Management’s Remuneration

Cash Remuneration

(A) Directors’ Remuneration

Name Remuneration
(MB)
Mrs. Paichit Rattananon 0.000
Mr. Narindr Vangsrivadhanagul 0.000
Mr. Paitoon Goserakwong 0.000
Mr. Loh Eng Kee 0.045
Ms. Jongkolnee Tansuvan 0.075
Mr. Tan Teck Seng 0.000
Assoc. Prof. Kamjorn Tatiyakavee, MD. 0.196
Assoc. Prof. Pises Sethsathira 0.147
Assoc. Prof Aekkachai Nittayagasetwat, PH.D., FRM. 0.147
Total 0.610

Remarks: In 2004, the Company’s Board of Directors consisted of four members including Mr. Paitoon Goserakwong, Mr. Loh

Eng Kee, Ms. Jongkolnee Tansuvan and Mr. Kitti Jivacate of which the Company did not pay any remuneration for
those directors. In 2005, the shareholders’ meeting passed the resolution to pay the directors’ remunerations in the
total amount not exceeding of Baht 2 million.

(B) Directors and Management’s Remuneration

Number Number

of of
Persons Persons
Management 5
Remark: The remuneration of Finance Manager and Accounting Manager were excluded.
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TRC Consruction Public Company Limited

Other Remuneration

The Company has set up the provident fund in May
2005 of which the Company has joined TISCO
Ruamtun | fund which is under the management of
Tisco Asset Management Co., Ltd. where three to
seven percent of salary is paid to the fund.

Corporate Governance

The Company’s Board of Directors has provided the

report on the Company’s good corporate governance

policy in accordance with the principles of corporate

governance guided by the SET as per the following

details.

1. Policy on Corporate Governance
The Company’s Board of Director realizes the
importance of good corporate governance in
that it is essential for the sustainable growth.
Consequently, the policy on good corporate
governance has been established to emphasize
on transparency and legitimacy of the
Company’s operation and the adequacy of
information disclosure as well as to ensure
that the shareholders and the stakeholders
are treated on an equitable basis.

2. Rights of the Shareholders

The Company has a policy to equitably facilitate
all the shareholders for the shareholders’
meeting attendance, the information disclosure
as well as the exercising of their voting rights.
All of the invitation letter and the relevant
information are to be sent to the shareholders
for not less than seven days in advance.

3. Rights of the Various Group of Stakeholders
The Company realizes the importance of those
internal and external stakeholders as all their
supports can strengthen the Company’s
competitiveness and performance. Therefore,
the Company has provided the policy on the
treatments of those various group of
stakeholders in the code of business ethics of
which the Company has announced to all

69

employees since June16, 2005.

Shareholders’ Meetings

The Company has a policy to facilitate the
shareholders at the shareholders’ meeting in
a way that the Company has allocated
appropriate time and has equitably encouraged
the shareholders to express their opinions and
raise any question. The Chairman of the meeting
also provided the equal opportunities for the
shareholders to examine the Company’s
operation, raise a question as well as express
their opinions of which such questions and
comments has been recorded in the meeting
S minutes.

Leadership and Vision

The Company’s Board of Directors has
participated in the decision on vision, strategies,
goals, business plan as well as budget of the
Company as well as has ensured the efficient
and effective performance of the management.
The Board of Directors has also overseen that
the Executive Committee has managed the
Company in accordance with all policies of
the Company. The Company’s Executive
Committee has the authorization to form a
joint venture or consortium of not exceeding
Baht 500 million except for the transactions
that might lead to a conflict of interests or the
one that requires the shareholders’ meeting
approval as per the regulations of the SEC
and the SET.

Conflict of Interests

In order to avoid any conflict of interests, the
Company has set the policy to govern the
connected transactions where the persons who
might have any conflict of interest are not
eligible to participate in the approval of such
transaction. In addition, the treatments of the
related/ connected transactions are strictly
complied with the regulations of the SET.
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7. Business Ethics of the shareholders’ meeting at the industry
The Company has provided the code of ethics average. In 2005, the Company set the budget
for all directors, management and employees of Baht 2 million for directors’ remuneration
to be the guidelines for truthful, honest and but the actual amount that the Company
fair business operation as per the mission of paid was Baht 0.61 million. According to
the Company. The Company has announced the Company’s policy, the management’s
this code of ethics for all employees to follow remuneration is corresponding to their
since June 16, 2005. And it is also attached responsibilities as well as the Company’s
as a part of working regulation for employees. performance.

8. Balance of Power for Non-executive Directors 11. Board of Directors’ Meetings
The Company’s Board of Directors consists The Company’s Board of Directors is
of nine directors including: scheduled to at least one meeting for every
- Executive directors 3 persons three months. Chairman of the Board is re-
- Non-executive directors 3 persons sponsible to conclude all the meeting agenda
- Independent directors 3 persons and to provide opportunities for all directors

to express their opinions and discuss as well

9. Aggregation or Segregation of Positions as to summarize all issues and conclusions
The Company has separated the positions of of the meeting. Secretary to the Board has
Chairman of the Board and President. Also, been appointed to support all the works of
one-third (1/3) of directors are independent the invitation letter and the relevant
directors which could be able to balance and documents, to facilitate the meeting, to file all
review the management. of the documents related to the meeting as

well as to provide recommendations on the

10. Remuneration for Directors and Management appropriate procedures that should be taken
The policy of directors’ remuneration has been in compliance with the relevant laws, rules
clearly and transparently set by the approval and regulations.

2004 2005
1. Mrs. Paichit Rattananon 0/0 7110
2. Mr. Narindr Vangsrivadhanagul 0/0 4/10
3. Mr. Paitoon Goserakwong 5/5 13/13
4. Mr. Loh Eng Kee 0/5 11/13
5. Ms. Jongkolnee Tansuwan 5/5 13/13
6. Mr. Tan Teck Seng 0/0 3/10
7. Assoc. Prof. Kamjorn Tatiyakavee, MD. 0/0 10/10
8. Assoc. Prof. Pises Sethsathira 0/0 8/10
9. Assoc. Prof Aekkachai Nittayagasetwat, PH.D., FRM. 0/0 10/10

Remarks: (1) In 2004, the Company’s Board of Directors consisted of four members including Mr. Paitoon Goserakwong, Mr. Loh Eng Kee,

Ms. Jongkolnee Tansuwan and Mr. Kitti Jivacate.

(2) Six new directors including of Mrs. Paichit Rattananon, Mr. Narindr Vangsrivadhanagul, Mr. Tan Teck Seng, Assoc. Prof.
Kamijorn Tatiyakavee, MD., Assoc. Prof. Pises Sethsathira and Assoc. Prof Aekkachai Nitayagasetwat, PH.D. were appointed
on March 3, 2005 according to the resolution of the EGM 2/2005. After the appointment of the directors until December 31,

2005, the Company had ten Board of Director's meetings.
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TRC Consruction Public Company Limited

12.

Sub Committees

The Company’s Board of Directors has ap-
pointed two committees; the Audit Committee
and the Executive Committeee which their
number are the Company’s directors. Those
two committees are authorized to request the
management to clarify any issues or to submit
a specific report as well as to appoint any
external advisor to provide a specific opinion

as appropriate.

The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three
independent directors which is responsible for
the appropriateness of financial reports, the
sufficiency of the internal control and risk
management system, the compliance with rel-
evant laws, rules and regulations, the
selection, nomination and remuneration of
external auditor as well as the accuracy
and adequacy of information disclosure
with regard to the connected transactions
or any other transactions that might lead
to conflicts of interests. Also, the Audit
Committee is responsible to review the
measures of risk management and provide
some recommendations to the management
as appropriate and to provide some comments
on the appointment, dismissal, plans, perform-
ance, budget and workforce of the internal
audit department. The Audit Committee shall
submit the operational report to the Board of
Director as well as to disclose the corporate
governance report in the Company’s annual

report.

73

Name Presence in the Audit
Committee’s Meeting
2005
1. Assoc. Prof. Kamjorn 4/4
Tatiyakavee, MD.
2. Assoc. Prof. Pises 3/4
Sethsathira
3. Assoc. Prof Aekkachai 4/4

Nittayagasetwat, PH.D.,
FRM.

13.

The Executive Committee

The Executive Committee consists of director
and management of the Company who is
responsible for day-to-day business operation
as consented from the Board of Directors.
This committee was appointed with the purpose
to facilitate the Company’s operation where
the Board of Directors has approved the scope
of duties and responsibilities of the Executive

Committee.

Controlling System and Internal Audit

The Company has set up the internal audit
department to ensure the appropriateness and
effectiveness of the Company’s operation and
financial activities as well as to examine the
Company’s compliance of relevant laws and
regulations. In order for the internal audit
department to be independent and enable to
perform the work efficiently, the Board of
Directors has directed the internal audit
department to report directly to and to be
evaluated from the Audit Committee. In
addition, in 2005, the Company has set up
the Quality System Department to implement
the international standard of ISO9001:2000 of
which the Company is expected to be granted

this 1ISO9001:2000 standard in 2006.
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TRC Consruction Public Company Limited

14.

15.

Board of Directors’ Report

The Company’s Board of Directors is respon- *

sible for the adequacy and accuracy of the '

financial reports as well as the financial |

information. The Board of Directors appointed ]

the Audit Committee, consisting of independent *

directors, to oversee the quality of such ’

reports as well as the internal control system. |

The report of Audit Committee shall be ]

submitted to the Board of Directors’ meeting -

and published in the Company’s annual report.

Relations with Investors

The Board of Directors has addressed the -

importance of accurate, complete, punctual and *

transparent information disclosure. Therefore,

it has appointed Mr. Paitoon Goserakwong, |

President, and Ms. Ounruen Sujarittham, -

Finance Manager and Secretary to the Board !

of Directors, as investor relation officers who |

are responsible for contacting with investors, -

shareholders, securities analysts, presses and °

other related parties.

The Uses of Internal Information Control
The Board of Directors’ Meeting No. 2/2005 held on ]

May 19, 2005 has set the policy to govern the uses |

of internal information as follows:

1.

All directors, management and employees -

of the Company are required to keep the !

confidentiality of all the classified and/or |

internal information.

All directors, management and employees of '

the Company shall not disclose all the classified .

75

and/or internal information to others for the
benefits of themselves or others directly or

indirectly, with or without remunerations.

All directors, management and employees of
the Company shall neither buy or sell or transfer
or obtain the Company’s securities using the
classified and/or internal information of the
Company nor enter into any transactions using
the classified and/or internal information of
the Company that could directly or indirectly

cause an adverse effect to the Company.

The directors, management and employees
of departments that are accessible to the
internal information shall avoid trading the
Company’s securities within 1 month prior to

the public disclosure of financial statements.

This policy shall govern the transactions to be
made by spouse and minor child of those
directors, management and employees. The
violation of this policy shall be treated as a

serious misconduct.

The directors and management of the
Company shall prepare and disclose reports
to the SEC on each person’s securities
holding and the holding of securities by
his/her spouse and minor children including
changes in such holdings as per the Securities

and Exchange B.E. 2535 , Section 59.

Annual Report 2005



‘i.‘llﬂa']ﬂi

v Y
% o a

U3UN foNsB Aou OSABU D0 (UML)

o AU 31 DUNAN 2548 UTHNY HAWHNIUNI U 264 An UTNaugwinIuydszan 60 A WAZWINGI1Y

Y o

09317 204 au wisenuEadne g it

A1891% FIIUNTNGIU (AN)
1. HauInNT 2
2. {18N139a1a IeINTIN wazduans 44
3. dhewangIna 1
4. ety MIRULazLSI U b 11
5. {189 1UANUITINE 1
6. dhania aunalu 1
7. wine AT 204
NN 264
Vo o Wi 31 SN 2547 UBEMY Swinensn 225 eu wlauninenUsedn 34 au uazwainau

'
o

70T 191 A

1 L s Y Qs 1 ‘§1
ANADULLNUABNNIIY TNIINLL @NVL@]@]\WI’]TN@]\WIQVLTJ%

HUIE: AIULIN

ANMDUUNUNINGIN 2547 2548

WU T2 14.82 31.85
wilneudanInm 7.48 19.01
N 22.31 50.86

lunis TisanSufonuoswiing1uaas CPP 4114 37 A4 NAN1Ta83uAaufauiuegnen desuinan 2548

328 9.68 ANULIN HIULTENY

MNgazdaieINUNeINU 1789A8ITNIBILTHNY

%IEIU’]EIﬂ’ﬁVT@N%’]‘L‘Jﬂa’mi

a o o 2 . X 4 X -
UiEny  AnnTaenanu 1909 RS TNT Wb uLA DT
wawnen 1 2548 lagu3wny dhsasnaesiu 194
‘&l a a v 1 ‘SJ a U ‘ﬁ! 1 U
LRENTW 7 Imaunu 1 GIAANZLD LA magmsﬂm
miu‘%mimwua\m‘%ﬂ'ﬂﬁﬁnﬂ%’wﬁﬁ'ﬂnamuﬁ 1A a1ia
g Vv > 1 U Al 1 =
ludns3osas 3 - 7 a980IA1319 tRetSHANSH

dihnasmu seaisswidadiaunIngian U 2548

SIWOUUSTU 2548 76

a o Y o a o . = [ Aa
uiny e Ay iuniwensyana Feaednai
U U d’d a o
azdostsznavlydrayaainsid  fdnaainlunis
UftiRem uTEny Jeinuaiagues sdiNanINamN
= a o > 1 g
yaaInIuazMIinauIn vasuiEny ddaluil

1. waldunswmmyeains



TRC Consruction Public Company Limited

Employees
As of December 31, 2005, the Company has the total number of 264 staffs consisting of 60 permanent

staffs and 204 temporary staffs as follows:

Department No. of Persons

1. Management 2
2. Marketing & Engineering and Operation 44
3. Business Development 1
4. Accounting, Finance and General Administration 11
5. Oversea 1
6. Internal Audit 1
7. Temporary staffs 204

Total 264

As of December 31, 2004, the Company had a total number of 225 staffs: 34 permanent staffs and 191

temporary staffs.

The employee’s remuneration can be summarized as follows:

(In Million Baht)

2004 2005

Permanent Staffs 14.82 31.85
Temporary Staffs 7.48 19.01
Total 22.31 50.86

Remark: The salaries of 37 CPP’s employees of Baht 9.68 million were not included in the above table.

Details of the Company’s Provident Fund ] Policy on Employee’s Training

The Company has set the provident fund in May The Company realizes the importance of efficient
2005 of which the Company has joined TISCO Ruam : human resource where the objectives of employee’s
Tun | registered fund that is managed by Tisco | training has been set as follows:

Asset Management Co., Ltd. with the contributing | To develop the effectiveness of employees;
proportion ranges between 3% - 7%. The first ]

contribution started in July 2005.
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TRC Consruction Public Company Limited

2. To build relationships between employees from
different departments as well as to build a
relationship between employees in operation
level and management level;

3. To build the spirit as well as the good attitude
towards the Company;

4. To enhance the operational efficiency;

5. To utilize the best efficiency of workforce,
machines and other assets; and

6. To avoid the sufficiency of skilled employees.

Consequently, the Company has set the policy on™
employee’s training as follows:

1. The Company shall provide the appropriate
training course corresponding to the duties,
responsibilities and positions of employees as
follows:

1.1 Operation level employees and heads

of departments
The training courses shall be focused

on technical skill as well as human
relations skill.

1.2 Management level employees

The training courses shall be focused
on managerial technical skill and
problems solving and decision making

skills.

2. The Company shall organize a business trip
for the employees to study and observe other
businesses in relation to the Company’s
business.

3. The Company shall organize activities to

create the relationship between the employees

such as New Year party or a company outing

79

trip in order to build the unity as well as the

good attitude towards the Company.
The procedure for human resource management and
employee’s training shall be in compliance to the

approval of the Board of Directors.

Labour Legal Dispute during the Past Three Years

The Company has no labour legal dispute during
the past three years which has adverse effect to
the Company’s assets of more than 5% of the
shareholders’ equity as of December 31, 2005. Most
of labour disputes that ever occurred were related
to the case that the Company had finished the
assignment before the end of the contract period
which led to the advance termination of the
employment contract for temporary workers. Therefore,
those workers demanded for compensations, however,
the Company was able to negotiate with them

without any lawsuits.

Internal Control

Refer to the Board of Directors’ Meeting No. 1/2006
held on February 23, 2006, the Board of Directors
has evaluated the adequacy of the Company’s 2005
internal control system according to the evaluation
form for internal control system that includes five
aspects: organizational control and environment
measure, risk management measure, management
control activity, information and communication
system and monitoring. This evaluation was based
on the information received from the discussion
with management, the documents prepared by the
management as well as the initial evaluation of the
Audit Committee. The Board of Directors deemed

that the Company has a sufficient internal control

Annual Report 2005
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TRC Consruction Public Company Limited

system which includes the adequate internal
control system for the transactions between the
Company and the major shareholders, directors,
management and related parties. In addition, the
Board of Directors agreed that the current internal
control is sufficient to prevent the unauthorized or

fraudulent uses of the Company’s assets.

The external auditor of the Company, Ernst & Young
Office Limited, has stated one significant matter of
the internal control system in the management letter
of 2005 that the Company should have separated
the duties of the preparation of cheque from the
reconciliation of bank statement. The Company has
already separated the two duties as recommended
since January 2006 of which the Audit Committee
has already acknowledged such action of the

Company.

The Dividend Policy

The Company has a policy to pay approximately
40% of its net profit after tax and legal reserve as
dividends. However, the dividend payout may be
changed according to future investment plans and

any other actions that deemed necessary and

81

appropriate under the condition that those actions
must be taken for the best interests of shareholders
such as the provision for loan repayment, the new
investment in business expansion, or in the case of
any adverse change that might affect the Company’s
cash flows. The Board of Directors is authorized
to consider the dividend payment, however, the
resolution of dividend payment must be proposed for
the approval of shareholders’ meeting except for the
case of interim dividend payment as the Board
of Directors has the authority to approve before
informing the interim payment to the subsequent

shareholders’ meeting.

The Board of Directors’ Meeting No. 1/2006 held on
February 23, 2006 passed the resolution to pay
dividend for 2005 operating performance at Baht
0.10 per share or equivalent to 48.85% of the net
profit. This dividend payout rate is higher than the
Company’s dividend policy of 40% of net profit
after tax and legal reserve. This resolution will be
proposed for the approval of the Annual General
Shareholders’ Meeting 2006 on April 26, 2006. The
dividend payment date is set on May 25, 2006.

Annual Report 2005
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Connected Transactions

Summary of connected transactions during 2004-2005

Transaction Size

Related Parities Relationship Transaction (Million Baht) Necessity and Reasonableness of the Transactions
2004 2005
Thai Rotary The Company’s previous | Rent income from 0.095 - The Audit Committee deemed that it is reasonable for the
Engineering major shareholder before| equipment Company to let out the unused equipment. Also, the
Limited the restructuring rental fee was determined from the equipment’s condition
that was agreed by both parties.
Currently, a subsidiary | Rent income from - 1.634 The Company sub-leased the leased machine which was
of the parent company | machine & oil unused at the fee equals to cost plus a normal profit
of the company’s major margin of the Company. The Audit Committee deemed
shareholder that the transaction is appropriate.
Project management - 0.400 The Audit Committee considered that the transaction is
service income for appropriate as in such period of time, the Company’s
Suvarnabumi Airport project on hand had yet to be started, therefore, the
Project (Bangkok’s new engineers had some free time to accept this job to
international airport) increase the Company’s revenue. Also, the fee charged
for this service was computed based on the estimate cost
of time plus a normal profit margin of the Company.
Material production cost|  1.381 - The Audit Committee considered that this transaction was
a normal business of the Company and is appropriate
as the Company had selected among several suppliers
before placing the order to this related company whose
price was lowest. The Company had placed this order
since 2003 but the transaction was continued in 2004.

paiwi] Aundwory 2ligng uoudNISUOD) Y]



877Gz ALESNNLARLS

ve

USEN

4w
nnaIuad

ANBUSANN “NWUDS

ANWMUSIILNT

W19V

318113 (A1UUIN)

1l 2547

il 2548

AN L?Jml,azm'm HEVG HARVDIIIENTT

S9N nelsans

" a a AI 3 %3
Wuaiesy a0
(#@)

A U 1 a o
filadulngjuosuisng
Aaun3usulass ¥
tfhagduduuidndanva

a 1 A U 1
uSnudaegtodulwg)
PDIUIBNY

PR RN
WA

0.174

I (%3 1 d' U a o A:i <* a
WWun1svarawussanliny usen neg lsans Bua
WS A0 asanneuSem ne 13an3 1Buaiese aia
AL TIAIUTIADINITAUUANTIATIY wazld 1190
YV = U v a o 1 U 1
PO TN A9 ldvalEn1eusEnyg  saueudnluane
= [y} gﬁ a o v v =) Y s
Y80 UITNaua8UUs BN INUIENY vl,mmvl,ﬁmugiumm
299 USHN nelsand Budiess ada Assuinevianie
MNnlseuasusEn e lowaiu ™ aia luusen Tnaudied
€a o o @ dj a d‘y o @ 1 o A
Wwasitia aia avlSHimndasrings lundsznaudud
AUWIUHINWE A9k vawiwd laawaanisusEn ne
13613 Buaiess 9100 lagdwma1dieaINsnsnis
F199S9HNAUATNTAININIIVNINIU  ANAUNIY  ®AZUIN
dasnlsunfvasusEn

PRI GIRERN)

13.000

HuwUEPC wmsunsvamsannlssey nalawiu ® s1ida
o) lusin Ineuvied masiisa e Seng S
Tnalsms Budiiass nnaldsueausnan vsem lns
Tawaiiu” $1da (Mr1au) dreUSunauas uSen ne
TsaTBuaiias e anluamzdusnn Felddszmeam§su
WHNE29 Ben1ensiny Emtszninsen uas Tdeue
nanEnlusienne $1ee u 13 &u szeclasenisie 9
fia 27 dguigu - 31 SUAN 2548 1AL uaLin I
U3217107107 MU IZHI NI TITNARN A TN IAINTTHUAS
uINdam lsUnAvesuIEn

DULE NAUSL NCU asLeu Unsn

(naLn)



S8

GO0z Hodsy jonuuy

Related Parities

Relationship

Transaction

Transaction Size

Necessity and Reasonableness of the Transactions

Thai Rotary
Engineering
Limited

(Continue)

The Company’s previous
major shareholder before

the restructuring

Currently, a subsidiary
of the parent company
of the Company’s major

shareholder

Income from wages

The Company provided welding staffs for Thai Rotary
Engineering Limited at a time that Thai Rotary
Engineering Limited faced an insufficiency of staff. At that
ime, the Company was a sub-contractor of Thai Rotary
Engineering Limited for the natural gas transmission
pipeline project from Thai Olefins Plc. to Thai Tank
Terminal Co., Ltd. and the Company had excess staffs.
Therefore, the Company was able to sent some of its
staffs to help Thai Rotary Engineering Limited where Thai
Rotary Engineering Limited all the wages was paid on
actual time of work plus a normal profit margin of the

Company.

Income from

construction service

(Million Baht)
2004 2005
- 0.174
- 13.000

The Company was a sub-contractor for the construction
of natural gas transmission pipeline from Thai Olefins Plc.
to Thai Tank Terminal Co., Ltd. of which the Company
had acquired this subcontract by bidding process. The
construction period was June 27 - December 31, 2005.
The price of Baht 13 million was based on engineering

procedure plus a normal profit margin of the Company.
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Transaction Size

Related Parities Relationship Transaction (Million Baht) Necessity and Reasonableness of the Transactions
2004 2005
Thai Rotary The Company’s previous| Cost of polishing and - 0.077 The Audit Committee considered that this transaction
Engineering major shareholder before| painting was a normal business of the Company and is
Limited the restructuring appropriate as the Company had selected among
(Continue) several suppliers and chose the one with the lowest
Currently, a subsidiary quotation.
of the parent company
of the Company’s major
shareholder Expenses associated As most companies in natural gas industry are located in
with the office in the Eastern part such as in Rayong, it is appropriate for
Rayong the Company to set up the office and warehouse there
in order to keep all the equipment and save
transportation expense.
'« Electricity | 0091 | 0.091 | The Audit Committee deemed that this transaction is
appropriate as the price was based on the estimation
of electrical equipment usage compared to the total
electricity usage of Thai Rotary Engineering Limited.
'+ Rental expense: | 0108 | 0108 | The Audit Committee deemed that this transaction is
Land for warehouse appropriate and is complied with the rental agreement
dated August 1, 2003.
'« Rental expense: | 0072 | 0.072 | The Audit Committee deemed that this transaction is
Office space appropriate and is complied with the rental agreement
60 m’ dated August 1, 2003.
Rental expense: - 0.043 The Company hired trailers in order to transport the
Trailer truck construction equipment to construction sites which the
Audit Committee considered that this transaction is
appropriate and in line with a normal business practice.
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Related Parities

Relationship

Transaction

Transaction Size

(Million Baht)

2004

2005

Necessity and Reasonableness of the Transactions

Thai Rotary
Engineering.
Limited

(Continue)

The Company’s previous
major shareholder before
the restructuring.
Currently, a subsidiary
of the parent company
of the Company’s major

shareholder

Petrol expense

0.016

0.023

The Company is responsible for the petrol expense
incurred from the transportation of employees to
construction sites of which the hirer had paid in advance.
appropriate and in line with a normal business practice.
In the first nine months of 2005, Baht 3,451.40 was
accounted as cost of petrol under cost of service cat

egory and Baht 19,089.72 was accounted as other

expenses. The Audit Committee agreed that this
transaction is appropriate as the actual expense was

charged to the Company.

Advisory fee

0.039

In 2004, the Company entered in to the bid for Blue
Scope Tender Project of which the Company needed
the advice from equipment experts of Rotary IMC

Pte, Ltd. (100% owned by Rotary Engineering Limited).
The Audit Committee considered that this transaction is
appropriate as the fee is charge at the standard rate of

the Rotary group.

Interest expense from
Promissory Note
of Baht 1 million

0.004

The Company borrowed Baht 1 million from Thai Rotary
Engineering Limited because of an urgent need for working
capital but the Company did not have any over draft
facilities. The interest rate charged for this loan was equal
to the interest rate that Thai Rotary Engineering Limited
was charged for its overdraft facility by commercial bank.
Therefore, the Audit Committee deemed that this transaction
is appropriate.
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Transaction Size

Related Parities Relationship Transaction (Million Baht) Necessity and Reasonableness of the Transactions
2004 2005
Thai Rotary The Company’s previous | Bank fee charged - 0.100 The Company together with Thai Rotary Engineering
Engineering major shareholder before| for bid bond Limited formed a 50:50 joint venture to bid for the
Limited the restructuring Outside Interconnecting Pipeline Project of Aromatics
(Continue) (Thailand) Plc. of which a bid bond was required.
Currently, a subsidiary Thai Rotary Engineering Limited then charged the
of the parent company Company for 50% of bank’s fee (2% of Bid Bond’s value)
of the Company’s major which was equal to Baht 40,000 per month for three
shareholder months period. This transaction was deemed appropriate
as the fee was separated in half and also it was the
lower fee compared to the fee that the Company normally
pays for its bank.
TREL-KSS The joint venture under | Project management 3.800 - This transaction was considered a normal business
Joint Venture the control of Thai service income practice and appropriate as the charge was computed
Rotary Engineering based on the estimation of time consumed for the
Limited project plus a normal profit margin of the Company.
Rental income from 2.328 - The Company to let out the trucks as they were not in
trucks use at that time. The Audit Committee deemed that the
transaction is reasonable as the fee was charged
according to the condition of those trucks that was
agreed by both parties.
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Related Parities

Relationship

Transaction

Transaction Size

(Million Baht)

2004

2005

Necessity and Reasonableness of the Transactions

Rotary
Engineering
Limited

A parent company
of the Company’s major
shareholder

Legal advisory fee

0.013

The Company hired Ang & Partners which is a law

firm in Singapore to review the MOU of the Company and
China Petroleum Pipeline Engineering Corporation where
Rotary Engineering Limited had paid this legal advisory
fee in advance. The Audit Committee agreed that this
transaction is appropriate as the actual expense was

charged to the Company. (551.20 Singapore Dollars)

KPK 1999
Co., Ltd.

The Company’s major

shareholder

Expenses related to
126 m® of office
space rental

(1363 Soi Ladprao 94,
Wangtonglang,
Bangkok)

o Electricity

« Office rental expense

These transactions no longer exist as the Company

has moved the office out of that building.

The Audit Committee deemed that this transaction is
appropriate as the fee charged to the Company was
based on the estimation of electricity used by space
area and average working time period.

The Audit Committee deemed that this transaction is
appropriate and is complied with the rental agreement
dated March 1, 2002 (for the period of March 1, 2002 -
February 28, 2004 at a charge of Baht 120 per m’ per
month which later increased to 126 m® with a charge
of Baht 15,120 per month or Baht 120 per m® per month)
and March 1, 2004 (for the period of March 1,

2004 - February 28, 2006 at a charge of Baht 120 per
m?® for 126 m® at a cost of Baht 15,120 per month). The

fee charged to the Company was equal to the fee charged

to other companies in the same building.
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Related Parities

Relationship

Transaction

Transaction Size

(Million Baht)

2004 2005

Necessity and Reasonableness of the Transactions

KPK 1999
Co., Ltd.

(Continue)

The Company’s major

shareholder

» Office space service

fee

0.050 -

The Audit Committee deemed that this transaction is
appropriate and is complied with the rental agreement
dated March 1, 2002 (for the period of March 1, 2002
- February 28, 2004 in the area of 92 m’ at a charge
of Baht 7,000 per month which later increased to 126
m® at a charge of Baht 8,000 per month) and March

1, 2004 (for the period of March 1, 2004 - February

28, 2006 in the area of 126 m”at a charge of Baht
8,000 per month). The fee charged to the Company
was equal to the fee charged to other companies in the

same building.

IEMC Co., Ltd.

A subsidiary of KPK
1999 Co., Ltd., one
of the Company’s

major shareholders

Income from
engineering
plan drafting for air
condition, electricity

and film

- 2.600

The Audit Committee considered that this transaction is
appropriate as the Company acquired this project from
IEMC Co., Ltd. who had been appointed by Naresuan
University to provide an analysis report on the usage of
energy in time that the project on hand had yet

to be started.
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Transaction Size

Related Parities Relationship Transaction (Million Baht) Necessity and Reasonableness of the Transactions
2004 2005

CPP-TRC A 10:90 Joint Venture Income from project - 50.666 This project subcontract was initially agreed by the

Joint Venture between the Company | subcontracting Company and CPP during the beginning stage of the
and China Petroleum bidding process and was in accordance with the
Pipeline Bureau (CPP) subcontract agreement dated September 30, 2005. The
in order to bid for Audit Committee deemed that this transaction is
Wangnoi-Kaengkhoi appropriate as it was corresponding to the intention of the
Natural Gas Pipeline Company to form the joint venture and the profit margin
Project from PTT Plc. of this subcontract was in a normal range.
As the Company did Fee from providing - 9.997 In September 2005, CPP needed to bring their Chinese

not invest in or provide
any financial supports
for the joint venture,
according to the joint
venture agreement,

the Company is not
eligible to share in the
profit and loss of this
joint venture.

Mr. Paitoon Goserakwong,
TRC’s President, and/or
Miss Jongkolnee
Tansuvan, the Company’s
director is one of the
authorized persons of
the joint venture.

work permits for foreign
workers of CPP-TRC
Joint Venture

staffs to perform their works for Wangnoi-Kaengkhoi
Project but they were in an initial stage of setting up their
company in Thailand. The Company, therefore, employed
their staffs and requested for the work permits in order
for those 37 staffs to be able to perform their works.
During the period of September 2005 - January 2006, the
Company charged CPP for all the expenses related to
those 37 staffs plus 3% of operating fee. The Audit
Committee considered that the intention of this transaction
was to provide the initial assistance to CPP-TRC Joint
Venture and had no impact on the Company’s operation

or performance.
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TRC Consruction Public Company Limited

Procedures on the Approval of Connected Transactions

Board of Directors’ Meeting No. 2/2005 dated May
19, 2005 has set the procedures for undertaking
connected transactions in the future that all the
connected transactions must be reviewed by the
Audit Committee and/or the Board of Directors who
shall provide their opinions of the necessity and
appropriateness of such transactions. Also, all
prices and conditions of such transactions must be
compared with those of the transactions between
the Company and the outside parties to check that
they are comparable with conditions of normal
business practices. With a purpose of flexibility in
operation, the Board of Directors approved the
Company to be able to enter into any connected
transactions that are normal business practices such
as a construction service or a subcontracting work
for the amount of not more than Baht 30 million
under the condition that all the prices and other
conditions of such transaction must be comparable
to the normal business conditions. For the best
interest of the Company, the meetings of the Audit
Committee and/or the Board of Directors must
acknowledge and provide the opinion upon such
transactions. Furthermore, the following connected
transactions must be reviewed and approved by the
meetings of the Audit Committee and/or the Board
of Directors before undertaking them:

. The connected transactions that are neither
normal business practice nor supportive to
the normal business of the Company;

The connected transactions whose prices and
conditions are different from normal prices
and conditions that the Company normally
undertakes with outside parties.

The connected transactions that are normal
and supportive to the normal business of the
Company under normal prices and other
conditions whose value exceeds Baht 30

million.

The conflicted persons (as specified in the Company’s
article of association and the regulations of the
SEC and the SET) must not perform any duties in
relation to the transactions that they are related or
might have conflicts of interests.

The Board of Directors shall govern the Company’s
operation to ensure that they are in compliance
with the securities laws and the regulations of the
SET including the regulation with regard to the infor-
mation disclosure of the Connected Transaction and
the Acquisition and Dispositions of assets of the
Company or the subsidiary (if any). Such compliance
shall include the compliance of the accounting
standard specified by the Accountant Association.

In case that the Audit Committee and/or the Board
of Directors have no expertise in any of the related
transaction, the Company shall appoint independent
expert or the Company’s auditor to provide their
opinion on such transaction for the Audit Committee
and/or the Board of Directors and/or the sharehold-
ers as appropriate. The Company shall disclose the
details of connected transactions in the notes to
financial statements that are audited by the auditor
of the Company.

Policies and the Future Connected Transactions

The Company anticipates that there will be some
connected transactions in the future that are
related to the current contracts such as rental and
electricity expense from the office and warehouse in
Rayong. In addition, the Company may enter into
the transactions with the related companies in
relation to construction and management services
which will be undertaken as a hirer or a contractor.
At present, the Company has no policy to request
for any financial support from or to give any supports
to the related companies. All those connected
transactions will be undertaken strictly in compliance
with the above procedures on the approval of

connected transactions.
Annual Report 2005
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TRC Consruction Public Company Limited

Management Discussion and Analysis

Operating Performance

1.

Overview
The Company’s major business is related to construction and installation works of which most of
them are in form of projects. The success factor of this business is, therefore, the efficiency project

supervision which leads to the predetermined cost and the punctual completion.

2005 is the year of a significant growth for the Company in both revenue and net profit. The
Company’s total revenue stood at Baht 509.3 million or an increase of 298.09% from the revenue of
Baht 127.9 million in 2004. This dramatic growth of revenue was a result of the three large projects
including the Baht 515 million of WS Recovery Boiler project from Thai Incinerate Service Co., Ltd.
and the two projects of natural gas transmission pipeline construction from PTT Plc., the Baht 126.5
million project of Knock-out Drum Phase Il and the Baht 2,200 million Wangnoi-Kaengkhoi Project,
operated by CPP-TRC Joint Venture of which the Company has subcontracted the project in the
amount of Baht 220 million from the CPP-TRC Joint Venture. In 2005, the Company has realized the
total of Baht 382.4 million from those three projects which was equivalent to 75.89% of the service
income. Consequently, the Company’s net profit in 2005 reached Baht 30.7 million or an increase of

270.62% from the net profit of Baht 8.3 million in 2004.

Operating Performance

Revenue

Service income and management service income are the major revenues of the Company of which
they were accounted for 97 - 99% of the total revenue in 2003 - 2005. In 2004, the service income
and management service income stood at Baht 124.1 million which was relatively close to that of 2003
of Baht 124.8 million. The major source of income was still the natural gas pipeline installation
projects for PTT Plc. In 2004, such income from PTT Plc. was contributed to 31.61% of the total
revenue. In 2005, the Company’s service income and management service income stood at Baht
503.8 million, increased by 318.67% from the previous year. In early 2005, the Company has acquired
new project from the engineering system installation and factory construction in petrochemical business
unit which was the WS Recovery Boiler Project from Thai Incinerate Service Co., Ltd. in the amount
of Baht 515.0 million of which the Company has realized Baht 264.1 million or equivalent to 51.85%
of the total revenue. As a result, the proportion of revenue from the projects of PTT Plc., which

included the subcontracted project from CPP-TRC Joint Venture, reduced to 25.48% of the total revenue.

Cost of Service and Administrative Expenses
The Company’s total expenses in 2005 stood at Baht 465.1 million or an increase of 303.50% from

the total expenses of Baht 115.3 million in 2004. Such a significant increase in total expenses was
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TRC Consruction Public Company Limited

a result of the new WS Recovery Boiler Project from Thai Incinerate Service Co., Ltd., the bank fee

from project bidding and expenses from new employees that the Company has hired in order to serve

the expansion of business.

Net Profit

Gross Profit

In 2005, the Company had a gross profit of Baht 79.6 million or equivalent to 15.80% of gross
profit margin which drop from previous years as a consequence of the fact that the Company
had entered into a construction business for petrochemical industry for the first time and such
project had a higher project value. The Company, therefore, set a gross profit margin for such
project at a lower rate than that of other projects of the Company. Moreover, in early 2005, the
Company provided air condition, electricity and film plan drafting service for IEMC Co., Ltd. of
which such service was not the major service of the Company. When deducting such service
income of Baht 2.6 million from the revenue and gross profit, the service income and management
service income and the gross profit of the Company would be Baht 501.2 million and Baht 77.0
million, respectively; this resulted in a gross profit margin of 15.37%. The gross profit margin
of the three large projects including the WS Recovery Boiler Project from Thai Incinerate
Service Co., Ltd., the Knock-out Drum Phase Il Project and the subcontracted, Wangnoi-
KaengKhoi Project which the Company realized the income of Baht 382.4 million stood at

14.08% while the gross Profit margin of other projects stood at 21.22%.

In 2005, the Company had the operating profit of Baht 44.3 million or equivalent to an
operating profit margin of 8.79%. The reasons for the decrease in operating profit margin in
2005 included the higher proportion of revenue from low-margin petrochemical workh as well
as the rise in raw material and labor cost. The administrative expenses increased by 118.46%.
Without taking into consideration the income from air condition, electricity and film plan drafting
service which is not the main business of the Company, the operating profit would be Baht

41.7 million or equivalent to an operating profit margin of 8.27%.

Net Profit

In 2005, the Company posted a lower net profit margin of 6.03% as per the aforementioned
grounds and without taking into consideration the income from air condition, electricity and film
plan drafting service which is not the main business of the Company and after deducting 30%
of income tax, the Company’s net profit of 2005 would be Baht 28.9 million or equivalent to

5.70% of net profit margin.
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TRC Consruction Public Company Limited

Return on Equity

The Company paid dividend in 2004 in the amount of Baht 18 million to the existing shareholders of
which part of it would be used to pay for the capital increase of Baht 20 million. The Board of
Directors’ Meeting No. 1/2006 dated February 23, 2006 passed the resolution to pay the dividend of
2005'’s operating result at Baht 0.10 per share or equivalent to 51.43% of the net profit after tax and
legal reserve. This dividend payout ratio is higher than the Company’s policy to pay 40% of the net
profit after tax and legal reserve. The Annual General Shareholder's Meeting of 2006 will be held on

April 26, 2006 to consider the dividend payment and the dividend payment date is set on May 25, 2006.

Financial Status

Assets

According to the financial statement for 2005 ended on December 31, 2005, the Company’s total assets
stood at Baht 447.0 million, increased by Baht 374.9 million from that of 2004 or equivalent to an increase
of 520.0%. The main reason for such a significant increase was the capital increases in 2005 which resulted
in a net cash of Baht 132.2 million as per the following details:

- The call for paid up the capital of Baht 60 million in early 2005;

- The capital increase from Baht 100 million to Baht 120 million during the period of August - September
2005 through the right offering of 20 million shares at the offering price of Baht 1.147 per share; the

proceed of this capital increase was Baht 22.9 million;

- The Initial Public Offering in December 2005 of the 30 million shares at the offering price of Baht 1.7
per share; the proceed of the IPO stood at Baht 49.3 million.

As a result, the Company had more working capital. In addition, the Company’s net accounts receivable and

unbilled receivable increased from Baht 17.8 million and Baht 12.6 million in 2004 to Baht 92.3 million

and Baht 70.9 million, respectively, from the new three projects including the WS Recovery Boiler Project,

the Knock-out Drum Phrase Il Project and the Wangnoi-KaengKhoi Project. The assets that were

significantly changed in 2005 included;

1. The increase in current assets of Baht 355.5 million or equivalent to 735.31% from the rise of
accounts receivable and unbilled receivable of new project and the cash received from capital

increases during 2005.

2. The increase in non-current assets of Baht 19.4 million or 81.63%; the main increased assets
included the increase in pledged deposits, the fixed deposits that the Company pledged with bank as
collateral for loan facilities, from Baht 16.88 million at the end of 2004 to Baht 32.30 million at the end

of 2005; and the purchase of vehicles, decorative items and tools & equipment of Baht 6.57 million.
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TRC Consruction Public Company Limited

Accounts Receivable

The Company’s net accounts receivable at the end of 2003 stood at Baht 48.3 million as a result of the
revenue increase. The net accounts receivable decreased to Baht 17.9 million at the end of 2004 and
increased to Baht 92.3 million at the end of 2005 as a consequence of the new large projects that the

Company has acquired in 2005.

Normally, the terms of payment of each hirer are different according to the contracts where the hirer would
pay after the job inspection and delivery. Most of the projects have credit terms of less than 60 days. The

aging accounts receivable at the end of 2005 compared to that of 2004 can be shown as follows:

(in Million Baht)
December 31, 2005 December 31, 2004
Trade accounts receivable: related parties
Not yet due 11.9 -
Overdue

Less than 30 days = -

30-60 days 37 -
60-90 days - -
90-120 days 6.9 -

Over 120 days - -

Total trade accounts receivables: related parties 22.5 -

Trade accounts receivable: other companies

Not yet due 6.2 8.8
Overdue

Less than 30 days 22.3 3.8

30-60 days 277 -

60-90 days - 3.1

90-120 days 13.5 -

Over 120 days 0.2 2.2

Total trade accounts receivable: other companies 69.9 18.0

The overdue accounts receivable from related parties of Baht 10.6 million was the transaction between the
Company and Thai Rotary Engineering Limited. As of March 15, 2006, the Company received Baht 2.8
million for the Baht 6.9 million of the overdue accounts receivable between 90-120 days where the rest is
under the collection process. The overdue accounts receivables of other companies of more than 60 days
resulted from the late delivery of project area of the customer. Normally, the credit term of the Company is
less than 60 days, however, in some cases; the customers may have to charge the fee from the project

owner before being able to pay for the Company, therefore, the credit term could exceed 60 days.
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TRC Consruction Public Company Limited

The Company has a policy to examine the status of the debtors whose receivables are overdue for more
than 60 days in order to set the allowance for doubtful accounts, however, the Company has no necessity

to set any allowance for the current receivables.

The Unbilled Receivables

Normally, the percentage of completion method has been adopted for revenue recognition of the Company,
therefore, the Company shall have some of the revenue that have been recognized under the accounting
standard but have yet to be billed under the conditions set forth in the contracts. Most of the contracts shall
specify the milestone collection where the Company shall complete the jobs under each milestone before
sending the invoice and after that; the unbilled receivables shall become the accounts receivable. The
unbilled receivables of the Company in 2005 increased from Baht 12.6 million in 2004 to Baht 70.9 million
as a result of the new projects including the WS Recovery Boiler Project, the Knock-out Drum Phase |l

Project and the Wangnoi-KaengKhoi Project.

Liabilities

The major liabilities of the Company included the accounts payable, unbilled payable and accrued
expenses. In 2005, the Company had additional unbilled payable from the new three projects. Moreover, the
advanced received from related party under construction contract of Baht 41.0 million was the advance
received from CPP-TRC Joint Venture. The Company also entered into a hire purchase agreement to buy

some vehicles. Consequently, the Company’s total liabilities increased to Baht 235.82 million.

Liquidity

In 2005, the Company required more working capital for accounts receivable and other current assets owing
to the significant increase in service income. The Company had seek some of the working capital from the
increase in accounts payable, the capital increase and the project financing facilities of commercial banks.
Normally, the interest charged from project financing is categorized as cost of project, therefore, the interest
expenses shown during 2002 - 2005 would be relatively low regardless of the value of projects on hand. On
contrary, the Company’s contingent obligations would be corresponding with the project value where the
contingent obligation would be high at the times that the Company has more projects on hand and the
contingent obligation would be low at the times that the Company has fewer projects on hand. The
Company usually manages its cash flows to correspond with the contingent obligations from the working

capital provision of each project. Therefore, the Company has not many liquidity problems.

The average collection period of the Company stood at 96.44 days in 2004 which is a normal business
practice as the Company recognizes revenue with the percentage of completion method while the
submission of invoice shall be correspond with the conditions stated in the contracts which could be a
monthly progress method or a milestone collection method. In 2005, the Company’s collection period drop

to 39.46 days with a payment period of 61.36 days which increased from 45.29 days in 2004. This was a

109 Annual Report 2005



USUN AOSE AoU ASABU $1N0 (UML)

o va v Y v I o 1 al o a 1 o v L U [} Y 3, dq’ 4
Y]']GL“ﬂNﬂWii‘Ugi']iJvL@LL(ﬂEl\‘iiNNﬂ"liLiElﬂ“D”]iﬁL\‘]%U']\‘i %) ‘V]’]EL‘ViLLSlﬂi’]ilﬂ’]i@]\‘]ﬂZi']'JaﬁﬂN’]vLNvL@u‘ULﬂ%@ﬂ'ﬂuﬂ’]iﬂ"l
= o 9w & Y o & N vV 1A o Y & o o 9w
‘Q\‘]B’]"WHSLVISJaﬂ@ﬂ%%ﬂﬁiﬂ’](ﬂ’]\l‘ﬂ @G%%%WﬂW’Q’]im’]i’JNEWEJVL@‘YISJ\‘]VLNLiilﬂ“ﬁ’]im”ﬂ’]ﬂﬂ@ﬂﬁ%ﬂ’ﬁﬂ’] azwﬂm:ﬂz

VAININUARARSVIUTENY WNAU 11519 Y4 wae 69.30 Y4 15U 2547 was 2548 aNa1eU

USENY J5097 0 Nnaaaen 2.03 winbull 2547 waz 173 winbudl 2548 laadnsn u nnwaaeeuaIuSENY
4 - Ave 4 o a v o . I
AL UREU MANNUTHIIUN WS FIRINTUSHIUTI8aY 8031 9 NINARDIAZHANANTY 1iD9aINNIT
a u 6 a d! U 1 ‘gl‘ U wz.:iu My a ) A:ql"a a
anavURs” UnIwdvyuion o ldwn anninIin waze lenga 1@ Sant9s waznmsanasuosrii unyuILU
‘ﬂ! U 1 U ‘gj U U ‘:"U 1R o o a 1 Q > > > 1
Foldun 1¥1nin198n Lmz@unmmwmvl,sqmmwuwmiz ludSanouning du lunmendududas 2w an
1 1 a o > g > 1 1 { a
aaavaziaIanay 81USENy 1ESUsuNInTn leednsn u nnwaaadhs 1 2548 Nanasaini 2547 Ainain
L a a U 1 U o v a A’ &J ‘&‘ U
VENHFIVDITINAVDILTENY anmsidaulasenslng 3 Imqmsmmmlwumnwmummg}ﬂ‘wumim WA
q/z.s'u My a o Qs AI r-g U ,.§' U U Aq./ 1R o o 1 =3
NeldngsladldiSandrse we g AunaAnIusa I MinI LLa:munmmmﬂm\mmuwﬁ: ag9bsfas
USHNY 7139280 3239MUNITUSHIT NINAGDIVAIUSHNY BATNIINENTY IUFINAIIEIRNANNINNTY 1 4917 1 A9

= a i a o Ao oA A A o & & a o
MNAIMHN NMNWANDIVBIUIWNY NEJHNLWNENWBNISTIISHUICES UUBDIUIWNY

MMIVEAT mwadawgm%waw%ﬁm lull 2546-2548 fienlnaifaein windy 1.38 win 1.36 111 wa
1.38 wiawady dodullaunisusrisnsze Gu auaz Awesesuesusny odrelsiann Wlosann
anwUzgINAVBILTENY ﬁﬂﬁﬁmﬁuﬁﬁﬂvlé]’LL@iﬂ'qiaiﬁmn%'ﬂﬂ"ﬁﬁzﬁuma "W vlduenTen1Idenaniean
mvl,sivl,éiﬁfmﬂugﬂwﬁmiﬁﬂ %’Nmaﬁﬂﬁﬂaﬂgﬂ%i{miﬁﬁﬂﬂ ForimmnnAansan e l@adgsldiFensrszdh
ﬁugﬂﬁﬁmiﬁw Azyil#enIn mwada\msﬂuﬁwaw%ﬁm WAL 1.89 1111 waz 1.68 i w3yl 2547

wasll 2548 aNAGU

UNRININIVDITUNY

USHNY ﬁ'@lmﬁunﬂ@ﬂwﬁunmmL‘Eunumﬂuﬁﬂu na1nfe MLAIRen kaintiwin1sd e T UUEH

v

a d’y 2{' U a s 6 a 4' gw v a 1 )
v;umgunwmmamusl,ugnﬁum‘sm uwas“uniwivgudsudu uannildiendutunuain uvaedtedu
a U a . . a Qs = 1 Ajﬁ 1 1 A U Q’ &l
LLﬂzﬂ’mLﬂufq]ﬂ’]ﬂﬁu’]ﬂ’]iW’lm’HEﬂugﬁJLL‘U‘U Project Finance laguSemy & “a unil - ude DI NAUANILAN
1 1 ‘&' g Y IQJ 1 o o
0.49 i udl 2547 1Tl 1.12 winlul 2548 mnmnwmwﬂmL%\'mﬁmiﬁwLLazé’unmmﬁaﬂuﬁmmuﬂm‘5:

g‘h 1 1 a w 13 % ‘;I‘J U % ‘ﬂl Q. 12 o o
I@]EWH/L W 3%1ﬂigiﬂﬂa$ 61 UDIUIWNY LU%L""]’]‘H%ﬂ’]‘Jﬂ’]LLE‘]ZLLaz@l%"q%\‘i’]%ﬂEJ\‘JVLNﬂﬂﬂ’]‘Vi%@]“H’I‘JZ

SWwoUUSTU 2548 110



TRC Consruction Public Company Limited

result of the acquisition of larger projects that enabled the Company to receive better credit terms from
suppliers. However, as the unbilled receivable are shown separately with the accounts receivable owing to
the normal business practice, the accounts receivable shown may be too low. Therefore, if adding the
unbilled receivable with the accounts receivable, the Company’s collection period would be 115.19 days and
69.30 days for 2004 and 2005, respectively.

The Company’s current ratio stood at 2.03 times in 2004 and 1.73 times in 2005. This ratio varies with the
value of projects on hand where the ratio would increase in times of fewer projects owing to the same
amount of decreases in current assets such as accounts receivable and unbilled receivable and the
decreases in current liabilities such as the accounts payable and the unbilled payable. On the other hand,
the current ratio would decrease in times of more projects on hand. The decrease in current ratio in 2005
compared to that of 2004 was a result of the business expansion from the acquisition of the large three
projects which led to the same amount of increases in accounts receivable and unbilled receivable and the
increases in accounts payable and unbilled payable. However, the Company has managed its liquidity with
care as can be seen from the current ratio of more than one time which indicates that the Company has

sufficient liquidity to pay for the short term liabilities of the Company.

The quick ratio of the Company stood at the same level during 2003 - 2005 at 1.38 times, 1.36 times and
1.38 times, respectively, according to the cash flow and liquidity management of the Company. However, as
the unbilled receivable are shown separately with the accounts receivable owing to the normal business
practice, the accounts receivable shown may be too low. Therefore, if adding the unbilled receivable with the
accounts receivable, the Company’s quick ratio would be 1.89 times and 1.68 times in 2004 and 2005,

respectively.

Source of Fund

The Company uses the working capital as a source of fund by using the credit terms from the suppliers to
finance the receivables and other current assets. The Company also uses the shareholders’ equity and
project finance facilities from commercial banks as source of fund. The Company’s debt to equity ratio
increased from 0.49 times in 2004 to 1.12 times in 2005 as a consequence of the increase in accounts

payable and unbilled payable which was accounted for 61% of the Company’s total liabilities.
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TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited

Report of Independent Auditor

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of TRC Construction Public Company Limited (Formerly known as “TRC

Construction Company Limited”)

| have audited the balance sheets of TRC Construction Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2005
and 2004, and the related statements of earnings, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for
the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management as
to their correctness and the completeness of the presentation. My responsibility is to express an opinion on

these financial statements based on my audits.

| conducted my audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that | plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement

presentation. | believe that my audits provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of TRC Construction Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2005 and 2004, and the results

of its operations and cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles.
QAM(JMG—{’O Q .
Ernst & Young Office Limited Rungnapa Lertsuwankul
Bangkok: 23 February 2006 Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 3516
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TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited

BALANCE SHEETS

TRC CONSTRUCTION PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS “TRC CONSTRUCTION
COMPANY LIMITED”)

BALANCE SHEETS

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2005 AND 2004

(Unit: Baht)
Note 2005 2004
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 230,304,164 14,483,016
Trade accounts receivable
Related parties 4 22,565,196 10,464
Others 69,905,236 17,980,907
92,470,432 17,991,371
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (192,130) (192,130)
Total trade accounts receivable, net 3 92,278,302 17,799,241
Unbilled receivable 5 70,860,872 12,640,653
Accounts receivable - retention 5 3,735,834 85,650
Construction in progress 195,629 2,138,202
Other current assets 6,469,249 1,199,945
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 403,844,050 48,346,707
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Pledged deposits at financial institution 6 32,304,089 16,879,866
Leasehold improvement and equipment, net 7 9,886,098 5,816,987
Intangible assets, net 8 264,559 429,882
Other non-current assets 675,036 619,535
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 43,129,782 23,746,270
TOTAL ASSETS 446,973,832 72,092,977

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited

BALANCE SHEETS (Continued)

TRC CONSTRUCTION PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS “TRC CONSTRUCTION

COMPANY LIMITED”)
BALANCE SHEETS (Continued)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2005 AND 2004

Note

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short-term loans from financial institutions 9
Trade accounts payable
Related party 4
Others
Total trade accounts payable
Unbilled payable
Advance received from related party unde
construction contract 4
Advances received from customers under
construction contracts 5
Current portion of financial lease payable 10
Suspense output VAT
VAT payable
Accrued expenses
Other current liabilities
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial lease payable, net of current portion 10
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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14,245,331

75,181
137,037,069
137,112,250

6,767,965

41,000,000

86,970
835,356
6,011,384
6,365,101
18,867,209
2,247,306
233,538,872

2,280,289
2,280,289
235,819,161

(Unit: Baht)
2004

82,905
7,412,217
7,495,122
6,519,280

1,598,824
210,902
829,791

10,514
5,035,913
2,096,803

23,797,149

23,797,149
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TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited

BALANCE SHEETS (Continued)

TRC CONSTRUCTION PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS “TRC CONSTRUCTION

COMPANY LIMITED”)
BALANCE SHEETS (Continued)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2005 AND 2004

Note

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Share capital 11
Registered share capital
154,500,000 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each
(2004: 1,000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 100 each)
Issued and paid-up share capital
150,000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each, fully paid
(2004: 200,000 ordinary shares of Baht 100 each, fully paid
800,000 ordinary shares of Baht 100 each, 25% paid-up)
Premium on ordinary shares 11
Retained earnings
Appropriated
Statutory reserve 13
Unappropriated
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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154,500,000

150,000,000
22,155,000

2,685,192
36,314,479
211,154,671
446,973,832

(Unit: Baht)
2004

100,000,000

40,000,000

1,150,000
7,145,828
48,295,828
72,092,977
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2548

503,835,737
720,075
4,786,808
509,342,620

424,217,264
40,231,790
610,000
465,059,054
44,283,566
(209,830)
(13,369,893)
30,703,843

0.22

(Be: Un)

2547

120,341,331
3,800,000
139,998
3,666,641
127,947,970

96,560,415
18,695,580
115,255,995
12,691,975
(132,093)
(4,275,509)
8,284,373

0.33

137,822,850 #iu 25,121,644 ¥iu



TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited

STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

TRC CONSTRUCTION PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS “TRC CONSTRUCTION

COMPANY LIMITED”)

STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005 AND 2004

REVENUES
Service income
Management service income
Interest income
Other income
TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENSES
Cost of services
Administrative expenses
Director’'s remuneration

TOTAL EXPENSES

Note

14

EARNINGS BEFORE INTEREST EXPENSE AND INCOME TAX

INTEREST EXPENSE
CORPORATE INCOME TAX

NET EARNINGS FOR THE YEAR

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

Net earnings

15

2.10

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (par value of Baht 1 each)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

(Unit: Baht)
2005 2004

503,835,737 120,341,331

= 3,800,000
720,075 139,998
4,786,808 3,666,641

509,342,620 127,947,970

424,217,264 96,560,415
40,231,790 18,695,580
610,000 -
465,059,054 115,255,995
44,283,566 12,691,975

(209,830) (132,093)
(13,369,893)  (4,275,509)
30,703,843 8,284,373

0.22 0.33

137,822,850 shares 25,121,644 shares
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30,703,843

2,663,465
(967,614)

32,399,694

(74,479,061)
(58,220,219)
(3,650,184)
1,942,573
(5,269,304)
(55,501)

129,865,813
41,000,000
(1,511,854)
5,181,593
13,831,297
6,505,089
87,539,936

(Be: Un)
2547

8,284,373

2,212,597
(7,644)

10,489,326

30,532,484
3,362,000
(12,350,653)
(2,010,432)
186,378
(582,080)

(9,524,920)
(4,469,685)
(2,332,098)
1,432,755
1,246,857
15,979,932



TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

TRC CONSTRUCTION PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS “TRC CONSTRUCTION

COMPANY LIMITED”)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005 AND 2004

Cash flows from (used in) operating activities:
Net earnings for the year
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by
(paid from) operating activities: -
Depreciation and amortisation
Gain on disposal of fixed assets
Earnings from operation before changes in operating asset
and operating liabilities
Decrease (increase) in operating assets
Trade accounts receivable
Unbilled receivable
Accounts receivable - retention
Construction in progress
Other current assets
Other non-current assets
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities
Trade accounts payable and unbilled payable
Advances received from related party under construction contract
Advances received from customers under construction contracts
Suspense output VAT
Accrued expenses
Other current liabilities

Net cash from operating activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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2005

30,703,843

2,663,465
(967,614)

32,399,694

(74,479,061)
(58,220,219)
(3,650,184)
1,942,573
(5,269,304)
(55,501)

129,865,813
41,000,000
(1,511,854)
5,181,593
13,831,297
6,505,089
87,539,936

(Unit: Baht)
2004

8,284,373

2,212,597
(7,644)

10,489,326

30,532,484
3,362,000
(12,350,653)
(2,010,432)
186,378
(582,080)

(9,524,920)
(4,469,685)
(2,332,098)
1,432,755
1,246,857
15,979,932
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(15,424,223)
967,617
(6,567,256)

(21,023,862)

14,245,330
60,000,000
72,155,000
2,904,744
149,305,074
215,821,148
14,483,016
230,304,164

44,974
13,402,212

1,785,000

(Be: Un)
2547

(2,641,267)
22,617
(3,774,222)
(497,000)
(6,889,872)

(783,487)
20,000,000
(18,000,000)

(170,128)
1,046,385
10,136,445
4,346,571
14,483,016

132,093
4,372,204



TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

TRC CONSTRUCTION PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS “TRC CONSTRUCTION

COMPANY LIMITED”)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005 AND 2004

Cash flows from (used in) investing activities:
Increase in pledged deposits at financial institution
Cash receipt from disposal of fixed assets
Purchase of fixed assets
Purchase of intangible assets

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from (used in) financing activities:
Increase (decrease) in short-term loans from financial institutions
Additional share subscription received
Net proceeds from share capital increase
Dividend paid
Increase (decrease) in financial lease payable

Net cash from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Supplemental cash flows information: -

Cash paid during the year for
Interest expense
Corporate income tax
Non-cash transaction consist of

Share issued costs were offset against share premium (Note 11)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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2005

(15,424,223)
967,617
(6,567,256)

(21,023,862)

14,245,330
60,000,000
72,155,000
2,904,744
149,305,074
215,821,148
14,483,016
230,304,164

44,974
13,402,212

1,785,000

(Unit: Baht)
2004

(2,641,267)
22,617
(3,774,222)
(497,000)
(6,889,872)

(783,487)
20,000,000

(18,000,000)

(170,128)
1,046,385
10,136,445
4,346,571
14,483,016

132,093
4,372,204

Annual Report 2005
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

TRC CONSTRUCTION PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS "TRC CONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED”)
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005 AND 2004

Balance -brginning of year 2004

Net earnings for the year 2004
Increase in paid-up share capital
Dividend paid

Statutory reserve

Balance - end of year 2004

Call-up the additional share subscription
Increase in paid-up share capital

Net earnings for the year 2005
Statutory reserve

Balance - end of year 2005

Note

11
12

11

13

Issued and paid-up Premium on

share capital ordinary shares

20,000,000 =
20,000,000 =
= 1,150,000
40,000,000 =
60,000,000 =
50,000,000 22,155,000
150,000,000 22,155,000

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of the financial statements.

(Unit: Baht)
Retained earnings
Appropriated -
statutory reserve Unappropriated Total
- 18,011,455 38,011,455
8,284,373 8,284,373
- - 20,000,000
- (18,000,000) (18,000,000)
(1,150,000) -
1,150,000 7,145,828 48,295,828
- = 60,000,000
- - 72,155,000
30,703,843 30,703,843
1,535,192 (1,535,192) =
2,685,192 36,314,479 211,154,671
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TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRC CONSTRUCTION PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS “TRC CONSTRUCTION
COMPANY LIMITED”)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005 AND 2004

1.  GENERAL INFORMATION

TRC Construction Company Limited was incorporated as a limited company under Thai laws on
20 November 1998. lts parent company is Thai Rotary Engineering Limited, a company existing
under Thai laws. The Company operates its business in Thailand and its principal activity is engaged
in construction service. The Company’s registered address is on 1363 Soi Ladprao 94 (Panjamit),

Ladprao Road, Kwang Wangthonglang, Khet Wangthonglang, Bangkok.

On 19 November 2004, the Company changed its registered office address with the Commerce
Ministry to No. 1 14" Floor, TP&T Tower, Soi Vibhavadee-Rangsit 19, Kwang Jatujak, Khet Jatujak,
Bangkok.

During 2004, the Company’s shareholding structure has changed. Thai Rotary Engineering Limited
disposed most of its investment in the ordinary shares of the Company to an oversea related company,
which has now become the Company’s major shareholder at the end of 2004.

During the first quarter of the current year, the Company and China Petroleum Pipeline Bureau jointly
established a joint venture under the name of “CPP-TRC Joint Venture”, with the Company holding
10% and China Petroleum Pipeline Bureau holding 90%. The joint venture was set up to bid for a
natural gas pipeline construction project of PTT Public Company Limited and the joint venture
subsequently won the bidding and entered into the contract to construct a natural gas pipeline with
PTT Public Company Limited on 10 August 2005. Subsequently, on 15 November 2005, the Company
and China Petroleum Pipeline Bureau jointly made a retroactive amendment to the Joint Venture
Agreement, to change the proportion in which profit and loss of the joint venture is shared to
correspond with the proportion of capital investment and financial support in the form of providing or
obtaining credit facilities for the joint venture, with that of the Company being 10% and that of China
Petroleum Pipeline Bureau being 90%. As at 31 December 2005, the Company has not invested
capital, provided financial support, or obtained credit facilities, and expects not to invest capital,
provide financial support, or obtain credit facilities for the joint venture in the future. It therefore has
not recognised the operating results of the joint venture and has not included the financial statements

of the joint venture for the consolidated financial statements on a proportionate basis.

The Company registered with the Ministry of Commerce for the change of its status to a public
company limited under the Public Limited Company Act and also registered the change of its name from
“TRC Construction Company Limited” to “TRC Construction Public Company Limited” on 25 April 2005.

129 Annual Report 2005
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TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited

On 8 December 2005, the Security and Exchange Commission approved an initial public offering

(IPO) of the Company’s ordinary shares. The Company’s securities will be traded in the Market for

Alternative Investment.

The Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET) reported that the Board of the SET has approved the listing

of the ordinary shares of TRC Construction Public Company Limited on the Market for Alternative

Investment, effective from 22 December 2005.

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting standards enunciated

under the Accounting Professional Act B.E. 2547.

Significant accounting policies adopted by the Company are summarised below: -

2.1

2.2

Revenue recognition

Service income

Service income from construction contracts is recognised on the basis of percentage of completion
based on the assessment of the project engineer, and considered the percentage of completion
is arrived at based on the proportion of actual construction costs incurred up to the end of the year
to the total anticipated construction costs. Allowance for the total anticipated loss on construction
projects will be made in the accounts as soon as the possibility of loss is ascertained.

The recognised revenues which have not yet been due as per contracts have been shown
under the caption of “Unbilled receivable” in the balance sheets.

Management service income is recognised by reference to the stage of completion.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis.

Expense recognition

Cost of services

In determining cost of construction services, the total anticipated construction costs are attributed
to each construction projects and then recognised as cost of services in the earnings statements
on the basis of percentage of completion.

The recognised cost of construction which have not yet been due have been shown under the
caption of “Unbilled payable” in the balance sheets.

The actual cost of construction incurred but not yet recognised as cost of services in the
earnings statements has been regarded as “Construction in progress” in the balance sheets.
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TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited

23

2.4

25

2.6

27

Construction in progress includes the cost of raw material, direct labour and other expenses incurred
for each project. Such construction in progress is valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value.

Trade accounts receivable and allowance for doubtful accounts

Trade accounts receivable are stated at the net realisable value. Allowance for doubtful accounts is
provided for the estimated losses that may incur in collection of receivables. The allowance is based
on collection experience and current status of receivables outstanding at the balance sheet date.

Leasehold improvement and equipment and depreciation

Leasehold improvement and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation of leasehold improvement and equipment are calculated by reference to their
costs on the straight-line method at the following rates per annum: -

Leasehold improvement - 10 %
Tools and equipment - 20 %
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment - 20 %
Vehicles - 20 %

Intangible asset
Intangible asset represents the cost of software which is used in the provision of service and
is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation of software is calculated by

reference to its cost on the straight-line basis over the period of 3 years.

Impairment of assets
The Company reviews the impairment of assets whenever events indicate that the carrying
value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable value of the assets are

arrived at based on the management’s valuation.

The Company recognises an impairment loss in the earnings statements whenever the carrying
value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The Company will reverse the impairment
loss to other income whenever there is any indication that the impairment loss recognised may

no longer exist or may have decreased.

Financial lease contracts

The Company regards a lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
as a finance lease whereby the fair value of the leased properties is recorded as assets and
commitment of the future rental (deducted interest portion) as liabilities.

Interest expense or finance charge is included in determining earnings according to the remaining

balance of the liabilities.
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TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited

2.8

2.9

2.10

211

212

213

Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions during the years are translated into Baht at the rates ruling on
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency outstanding on the balance
sheet date are translated into Baht at the rates ruling on the balance sheet date.

Exchange gains and losses were included in determining earnings.

Employee benefits

The Company and its employees jointly registered a provident fund scheme under Provident
Fund Act B.E. 2530. The fund is monthly contributed to by the employees at rates of 3 - 7%
of their basic salaries and by the Company at the same rate. The fund is managed by TISCO
Asset Management Company Limited and will be paid to the employees upon termination in
accordance with the regulations of the fund.

Financial derivative instruments
The Company has no policy to speculate in or engage in the trading of any financial derivative

instruments.

Financial instruments carried in the balance sheets include cash and deposits at financial
institutions, trade accounts receivable, short-term loans from financial institutions, trade accounts
payable and financial lease payable. The particular recognition methods adopted are disclosed
in the individual policy statements associated with each item.

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is determined by dividing net earnings for the year by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares held by outsiders and in issues during the year, after
adjusting the number of ordinary shares in proportion to the change in the number of shares
as a result of the change in par value discussed in Note 11. The previous year’s reported
earnings per share is also restated.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents included cash and deposits at financial institutions with an original

maturity of 3 months or less and free from commitments.

Use of accounting estimates

Preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates for certain accounting transactions, affecting amounts
reported in the financial statements and notes related thereto. Subsequent actual results may
differ from these estimates.
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TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited

3. TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

As at 31 December 2005 and 2004, the outstanding balances of trade accounts receivable are aged

below: -

Trade accounts receivable - related parties

Trade accounts receivable - not yet due
Trade accounts receivable - overdue
#aana1 30
30 - 60 days
90 - 120 days

Total trade accounts receivable - related parties

Trade accounts receivable - other companies

Trade accounts receivable - not yet due
Trade accounts receivable - overdue

Less than 30 days

30 - 60 days
60 - 90 days
90 - 120 days

Over 120 days
Total trade accounts receivable - other companies
Total trade accounts receivable
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts

Total trade accounts receivable, net

4. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Unit: Baht)

2005 2004
11,886,316 10,464
32,618 -
3,738,157 -
6,908,105 -
22,565,196 10,464
6,180,939 8,825,294
22,310,893 3,814,550
27,683,954 -
- 3,141,233
13,537,320 -
192,130 2,199,830

69,905,236 17,980,907
92,470,432 17,991,371

(192,130) (192,130)

92,278,302 17,799,241

During the years, the Company had significant business transactions with its related parties (related

by way of shareholding and having certain shareholders and/or directors in common). Such transactions,

which have been concluded on the terms and basis as determined between the Company and those

parties, are summarised below: -

Transactions with parent company

Service income
Rental income

Cost of services

137

2005

2004

95
1,381

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Pricing policy

Agreed upon basis
Agreed upon basis

Agreed upon basis
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TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2005 2004 Pricing policy
Other expenses = 330 Agreed upon basis
Dividend paid = 9,180 As declared
Transactions with related parties
Service income 61,299 - Agreed upon basis
Management service income - 3,800 Agreed upon basis
Other income 2,034 - Agreed upon basis
Cost of services 124 - Agreed upon basis
Other expenses 390 228 Agreed upon basis
Rental income - 2,328 Agreed upon basis
Dividend paid - 8,820 As declared

The outstanding balances in respect of the above transactions are separately shown in the balance

sheets under the following caption: -

(Unit: Baht)
2005 2004
Trade accounts receivable - related parties
Thai Rotary Engineering Limited 11,868,184 10,464
CPP-TRC Joint Venture 10,697,012 =
22,565,196 10,464
Trade accounts payable - related party
Thai Rotary Engineering Limited 75,181 82,905

Advances received from related party under construction contract
CPP-TRC Joint Venture 41,000,000 -

5. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - RETENTION/ADVANCES RECEIVED FROM CUSTOMERS
UNDER CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

(Unit: Baht)
2005 2004
Amount of contract revenue recognised as revenue in the year 508,835,737 120,341,331
Aggregate amount of construction costs incurred 515,471,972 184,715,019
Adjust with the recognised profits to date 101,455,261 41,547,171
616,927,233 226,262,190
Sum of progress billings 546,066,361 213,621,537
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TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited

(Unit: Baht)
2005 2004
Gross amount due from customers for contract work 70,860,872 12,640,653
Accounts receivable - retention 3,735,834 85,650
Advances received from customers under construction contracts 41,086,970 1,598,824

6. PLEDGED DEPOSITS AT FINANCIAL INSTITUTION
As at 31 December 2005, a fixed deposits of approximately Baht 32.3 million (2004: Baht 16.9

million) had been pledged to secure against credit facilities granted by bank to the Company.

7.  LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENT AND EQUIPMENT

(Unit: Baht)
Furniture,
fixtures
Tools and Leasehold and office
equipment improvement equipment Vehicles Total

Cost:
31 December 2004 4,504,540 1,651,838 3,428,563 3,626,168 13,211,109
Acquisitions 584,970 - 1,692,123 4,290,164 6,567,257
Disposals/written-off (233,645) - (19,621)  (1,257,944)  (1,511,210)
31 December 2005 4,855,865 1,651,838 5,101,065 6,658,388 18,267,156
Accumulated depreciation:
31 December 2004 3,166,975 335,191 1,365,431 2,526,525 7,394,122
Depreciation for the year 472,441 455,094 766,331 804,277 2,498,143
Depreciation for disposals

/written-off (233,644) - (19,621)  (1,257,942)  (1,511,207)
31 December 2005 3,405,772 790,285 2,112,141 2,072,860 8,381,058
Net book value:
31 December 2004 1,337,565 1,316,647 2,063,132 1,099,643 5,816,987
31 December 2005 1,450,093 861,553 2,988,924 4,585,528 9,886,098
Depreciation for the year charged in cost of services
2004 709,895
2005 927,320
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TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited

(Unit: Baht)
Furniture,
fixtures
Tools and Leasehold and office
equipment improvement equipment Vehicles Total
Depreciation for the year charged in administrative expenses
2004 1,435,583
2005 1,570,823

As at 31 December 2005, certain leasehold improvement and equipment items of the Company have
been fully depreciated but are still useful. The original cost, before deducting accumulated depreciation,

of those assets amounted to Baht 1.6 million (2004: Baht 1.8 million).

Net book value of leasehold improvement and equipment as at 31 December 2005 included net book

value of motor vehicles under financial lease contracts of approximately Baht 4 million.

8.  INTANGIBLE ASSET

(Unit: Baht)
2005 2004
Software 497,000 497,000
Less: Accumulated amortisation (232,441) (67,118)
Net 264,559 429,882
Amortisation for the year 165,323 67,118

All amortization for the years 2005 and 2004 has been charged to administrative expenses.

9. SHORT-TERM LOANS FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Short-term loans from financial institutions have been guaranteed by the related companies and the

pledge of the Company’s fixed deposits.

10. FINANCIAL LEASE PAYABLE

(Unit: Baht)

2005 2004

Financial lease payable 3,115,645 210,902
Less: Current portion (835,356) (210,902)

Net 2,280,289 =
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TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited

11.

These vehicle leases have repayment schedules 48 months.

SHARE CAPITAL

On 21 July 2004, an Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company’s shareholders resolved that the
Company would increase the Company’s registered share capital from Baht 20 million to Baht 100 million
through the issue of 800,000 ordinary shares of Baht 100 each, allocated to existing shareholders in
proportion to their shareholding. The resolutions also approved the call up share subscription at 25%
of the additional capital. The Company registered the increase in its share capital with the Ministry of
Commerce on 30 August 2004 and received payment of 25% of the additional capital in September 2004.

On 6 October 2004, an Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company’s shareholders passed a
resolution approving the Company to call up the remaining uncalled portion of 75% share price from
the Company’s shareholders. During the first quarter of the current year, the Company has received
such call-up share subscription from its shareholders.

On 8 April 2005, a resolution of an Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company’s shareholders

authorised the following transactions: -

- To change the status of the Company to be a public company limited.

- To change the par value of the Company’s shares from Baht 100 per share to Baht 1 per
share, such that the Company’s share capital of Baht 100 million would comprise 100 million
shares of Baht 1 each.

- To increase the Company’s registered share capital from Baht 100 million to Baht 120 million
through the issue of 20 million ordinary shares, with a par value of Baht 1 each.

- To list the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

The Company registered the change in the par value of the Company’s ordinary share from Baht 100
per share to Baht 1 per share, and the increase of its registered share capital to Baht 120 million with
the Ministry of Commerce on 25 April 2005.

Subsequently, on 10 August 2005, the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company’s shareholders
passed a resolution approving the reduction of the Company’s registered share capital from Baht 120
million to Baht 100 million through the cancellation of 20 million registered ordinary shares of Baht 1
each which have not been paid up. The meeting also passed a resolution approving an increase in
the registered share capital of the Company from Baht 100 million (subsequent to the reduction of
registered share capital) to Baht 154.5 million through the issue of 54.5 million ordinary shares of
Baht 1 each, and approved the allotment of the increased share capital as follows: -
1. 20 million shares were allotted to the Company’s existing shareholders at the offer price of
Baht 1.147 per share.
30 million shares were allotted for public offering.

4.5 million shares were allotted for the exercise of green shoe option by the under writer.
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TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

In September 2005, the Company received share subscription price of the allotted 20 million ordinary
shares from existing shareholders and the Company registered the changes in its share capital with
the Ministry of Commerce on 8 September 2005. Total share proceeds from shares allotted to the

Compan‘f/s existing shareholders were Baht 22.94 million with the share premium of Baht 2.94 million.

The Company received the additional share subscription from the public offering of ordinary shares in
December 2005 and registered the increase in paid-up capital to Baht 150 million with the Ministry of
Commerce on 19 December 2005. Total share proceeds were Baht 51 million with the share premium
of Baht 21 million and share issued costs approximately by Baht 1.79 million were offset against this

share premium.

DIVIDEND PAID
On 17 June 2004, the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company’s shareholders approved the payment
of interim dividend of Baht 90 per share to the Company’s shareholders, 200,000 shares (par value of

Baht 100 each), totalling Baht 18 million. The Company made the dividend payment in September 2004.

STATUTORY RESERVE

In accordance with Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the Company is
required to set aside a reserve at least 5 percent of its net profit after deducting accumulated deficit
brought forward (if any) until the reserve reaches 10 percent of the registered share capital. This

reserve is not available for dividend distribution.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
Directors’ remuneration represents the benefits paid to the Company’s directors in accordance with
section 90 of the Public Limited Companies Act., exclusive of salaries and related benefits payable to

Executive Directors.

CORPORATE INCOME TAX

Corporate income tax for the years 2005 and 2004 were calculated at the rate of 30 percent on the

net earnings after adding back certain expenses which are disallowable for tax computation purposes.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

The meeting of the Company’s Board of Directors No. 1/2549, held on 23 February 2006, passed a
resolution to propose the payment of a dividend of Baht 0.1 per share, or a total of Baht 15 million,
to be paid within 25 May 2006, for approval by the Annual General Meeting of the Company’s
shareholders, which will be held on 26 April 2006.
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TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited

17. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED COSTS

18.

19.

2005 2004
Number of employees at the end of year 304 130
Employee costs for the year (Thousand Baht) 65,453 23,517

During 2005, Baht 307,205 has been contributed to the provident fund by the Company and recorded

as expenses in the earnings statement.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION BY SEGMENT

The Company’s operations involve a single business segment, the construction service business, and

are carried on in the single geographic area of Thailand. As a result, all of revenues, operating profits

and assets as reflected in these financial statements pertain to the aforementioned business segment

and geographic area.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

1941

19.2

19.3

Interest rate risk
The interest rate risk is the risk that future movements in market interest rate will affect the

results of the Company’s operations and its cash flows.

The Company’s exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to its deposits with financial
institutions, short-term loans from financial institutions and financial lease payable. The

Company does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge such risk.

Foreign currency risk
As at 31 December 2005, the Company has foreign currency liabilities of Euro 2.3 million

(2004: none), which were unhedged.

Credit risk and liquidity risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default in its contractual obligations resulting
in a financial loss to the Company. Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that customers may
not be able to settle obligations to the Company within the normal terms of trade. The
Company is exposed to credit risk and liquidity risk primarily with respect to trade accounts
receivable. The management, however, believes that the Company’s maximum exposure to
credit risk and liquidity risk is limited to the carrying amount of receivables less allowance for

doubtful accounts as stated in the balance sheets.
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TRC Consfruction Public Company Limited

20.

21.

22.

23.

19.4 Fair value
Since the majority of financial assets and liabilities are short-term and the loans carry interest
at rates close to market rates, the management of the Company believes the fair value of the

financial assets and liabilities do not materially differ from their carrying value.

COMMITMENTS

20.1 As at 31 December 2005, the Company has outstanding commitments in respect of land and
office building rental, and service agreements to be paid of Baht 3.6 million (2004: Baht 4.0 million).

20.2 As at 31 December 2005, the Company has no outstanding commitments (2004: commitments
of Baht 0.9 million) relating to expenses of the Company’s application for the listing of its
shares on the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

20.3 As at 31 December 2005, the Company has the outstanding commitments of Baht 26.5 million

and Euro 3.6 million in respect of subcontracted work.

BANK GUARANTEE
As at 31 December 2005, there were outstanding bank guarantees of approximately Baht 78.6 million
(2004: Baht 32.9 million) issued by the bank on behalf of the Company as required in the normal

course of business of the Company.

PRESENTATION
The presentation of the financial statements has been made in compliance with the stipulations of the
notification of the Business Development Department dated 14 September 2001 as empowered under

the Accounting Act B.E. 2543.

Certain amounts in the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2004 have been
reclassified to conform to the current year’s classifications, with no effect on previously reported net

earnings or shareholders’ equity.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on

23 February 2006.
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Details of the Company’s Management and Control Persons as of December 31, 2005

Name/ Position

Mrs. Paichit Rattananon
Chairman and Authorized

Director

€SL

50

Education Shareholding
in the
Company (%)
Bachelor of Political
Science, Ramkhamhaeng

University

Thailand National Defense

College: TNDC 48

Director Accreditation
Program (DAP) 38/2005,
Thai Institute of Director

Association

Mr. Narindr Vangsrivadhanagul

Chairman of the Executive
Committee and Authorized

Director

Q00T Hoday onuuy

56

Master of Business
Administration, SASIN

Graduate School

Bachelor of Laws,

Chulalongkorn University

Director Accreditation Program
(DAP) 36/2005, Thai Institute

of Director Association

Relationship

Period

Working Experience

Position

Company

paiwi] Aundwory 2ligng uoudNISUOD) Y]
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Name/ Position

Mr. Paitoon Goserakwong
President and

Authorized Director

Education Shareholding
in the

Company (%)

53 Master of Arts in Industrial

Management, Northern

lllinois University, U.S.A.
Bachelor of Chemical
Engineering, Chulalongkorn

University

Director Accreditation Program

(DAP) 26/2004 and Director

Certification Program (DCP)
53/2005, Thai Institute of

Director Association

Mr. Loh Eng Kee
Director and
Authorized Director

Technical Diploma in
Mechanical Engineering,
Singapore Polytechnic

Has not yet to enroll for the
Director Accreditation Program
(DAP) as there is no such
course directed in English

language.

Relationship

Working Experience

Position

Company
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Name/ Position

Ms. Jongkolnee Tansuvan

Director and Authorized Director

41

Education Shareholding
in the
Company (%)
Master of Arts in Accounting,

Thammasat University

Director Accreditation Program
(DAP) 35/2005, Thai Institute

of Director Association

Mr. Tan Teck Seng

Director

Bachelor of Mechanical
Engineering, Liverpool

University, U.K.

Has not yet to enroll for the
Director Accreditation Program
(DAP) as there is no such
course directed in English

language.

Relationship

Period

Working Experience

Position

Company
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Name/ Position

Assoc. Prof. Kamjorn
Tatiyakavee, MD.
Director and the Chairman

of Audit Committee

50

Education Shareholding  Relationship
in the

Company (%)

Bachelor of Medicine,

Chulalongkorn University

Diploma of Pediatrics,

Chulalongkorn University

Director Accreditation Program
(DAP) 35/2005, Thai Institute

of Director Association

Assoc. Prof. Pises Sethsathira

Director and Audit Committee

49

Master of Laws (LL.M),

Columbia University, U.S.A.

Director Accreditation Program
(DAP) 35/2005, Thai Institute

of Director Association

Period

Working Experience

Position

Company
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University of Mississippi,
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Name/ Position

Assoc. Prof Aekkachai
Nittayagasetwat, PH.D., FRM.

Director and Audit Committee

Education Shareholding

in the

Company (%)

PH.D. in Finance,

University of Mississippi, U.S.A.

Financial Risk Manager: FRM®

Global Association of Risk

Professionals (GARP)

Director Accreditation Program
(DAP) 35/2005, Thai Institute

of Director Association

Mr. James Jordan Fleming
Vice President of Engineering,
Marketing & Operation

Department

University Entrance Certificate
Secondary School,

New Zealand

Filter Welder Certificate and

First Class Welder

Relationship

Period

Working Experience

Position

Company

paiwi] Aundwory 2ligng uoudNISUOD) Y]
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Name/ Position

Mr. Peerasak Sukpenkaew
Vice President of Business
Development Department

Education

Bachelor of Science,
Chulalongkorn University

Bachelor of Veterinary
Science, Chulalongkorn
University

Shareholding
in the

Company (%)

Mr. Sakda Tantivathanakul
Assistant Vice President of
Engineering & Marketing
Division

48 Bachelor of Engineering,

Chiang Mai University

Mr. Chaveng Reesrikitti
Assistant Vice President of
Operation Division

Bachelor of Engineering,
Chiang Mai University

Ms. Ounruen Sujarittham
Finance Manager and Secretary
to the Board of Directors

Master in Finance,
National Institute of
Development Administration

Ms. Rewadee Ardharn
Accounting Manager

Bachelor of Accounting,
Ramkhamhaeng University

Relationship

Period

Working Experience

Position

Company

paiwi] Aundwory 2ligng uoudNISUOD) Y]

Remark: (*)Include direct shareholding, indirect shareholding through KPK 1999 Co., Ltd. in which 99.99% of its shares held by Mrs. Paichit Rattananon and 4.5 million over-allotment shares which Mrs. Paichit

Rattananon had lent to Kim Eng Securities (Thailand) Plc.
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